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INDEPENDE T AUDITORS' REPORT

To lh€ Honorable Mayor and
the MunlclDal Leglslatu.e
Autonomou3 Munlclpallty ot Dorado
Dorado, Puerto Rlco

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activitieq the

businesetype activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remainlng fund information of the
Autonomous Munlclpallty ot Dorado, Pueno Rlco (Munlclpallty), as of and lor rhe year ended

)!ne 30,2012, Mich collectively comprise the Municipslltyl basic linancial statements as

listed in the table of contents, Ihese linancial slatements are the responsibility of tie
Municlpality's management. our .esponslbllity is to expreas an opnlon on these finalcial
stateBents based on ouraudit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the l,nited
states of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment

Auditing, Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether tJle

financial statements are free o, material misstatement. An audit includes examining' on a test
basis, evidenc€ supporting the amounts and disclo6ures in the ,inancial s'tatements' An audit
also includes assessing the accountng principles used and the significant estimates made by

managemen! as well as evaluating the overatl financial statement presentation. We believe

that our audit orovldes a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the ,inancial statements referred to previous,y present fairly, in all material

respects, tlre respec'tive financial positlon of the govemmental activities, the business type-

activities, each major fund. and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Autonomous

Municipality o, Oorado, Puerto Rho, as of.,une 3O,2O12, and the respective changes in

financial position and cash flows, thereof for the yearthen ended in confomity with accountinSl
principles generally accepted in the United States ofAmerba.

ln acoordanco wilh C<Nernment Auditing Stahdards, we havo also issued our tepon dabd
February 12, 2013, on our coasideration of the Autonomous Munlclpallty ot Dorado's internal

control over Iinancial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
16w3, regulations, contlscts, dnd gront agreements and other mattefs. The purpGe of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and

compliance and the resul'rs ol that testing and not to provide an opinion on intemal control

over financial reportrng or on compliance. That rcport is an integral part of an audit performed

in accordance with Govemment Auditin€, Stardards aod should be considered in assessing the
results ofour audit,
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Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion ond analysb and budEet6ry comparison information on pages 3
through 11 and 63 be presented to supplement the basic financial sbtements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financiat statemenG, is .equired by the
Governnrental Accounting Standards Boad, who considers it to be an essentjal part of tinancial
reporting for dacing the besjc fnancial statements in an app.opriate operational, economic, or
hislorical conte)(. We have apptied cenain limited procedures io the required supplementary
:nformaton ln ac@rdance wtth the audttng sandards genera y accepted ln the Unned States
of Arnerica, which clnsisted of inquiries of management about the methods of prepadng the
information and comparing the informatjon for consistency with management,s responses to
our inquiries, the basic financiat statements, and oller knowtedge we obtained during our audit
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinioo or provide any assurance on
the information because the limited flocedures do not prcvide us yyith sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was cooducied for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statemeflts that
collectir€ly comprise the Autonomous Municipallty ot Dorcdo's financial statements. The
accompenying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by U,S. Office of
Management and Budget Circular 4133, Audjts of State, Local covemments, and Non-proFrt
organizations is presented for purposes of additional analysis, and is not a required part of the
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was deived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other recods used to prepare the
financial slatements. The anformation has been subjected to the auditing procedures applted in
the audit of the financial statements and cedain additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America ln our opinion, the
information is fuirly stated in all matenlal respects in relation to the financiat statements as a
whole.

:'-Z/f 'ce'lc
LOPEZ.VEGA, CPA" PSC

San Juan, Puerto Rico
Febtuary 12,20!3

Stamp No,2632094 ofthe Puerto Rico
Society of Certilied Public Accountants
u/as affrxed to the record copy of this repon.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)

Lopei.-lega,C I'A. PSC
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30,2012

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION ANDANALYSIS

As management of the Autonomous Municipality oI Dorado (Municipality), we offer readers
of the Municipality's basic financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the
financial activities ofthe Municipality as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. Thls
Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)includes comparative data, and it has been
designed accordingly with the following goals:

a)
b)
c)

d)

e)

Assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues;
Provide an overview ofthe N4unicipality's financial activity;
ldentify changes in the Municipality's financial position (its ability to address
the next and subsequent year challenges);
ldentify any material deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget,)
andi
ldentify individualfund issues or concerns.

Since the MD&A is designed to focus on the current year activities, resulting changes and
currently known facts, please read it in conjunction with the Municipality's financial
statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

. The Municipality net assets increased by $2,151,351.

. ln the fund financial statements, the governmental activities revenues increased
$3,42A,297 (or 10%o) and governmental activities expenditures increased $469,329
\ot La,A).

. The General Fund (the primary operating fund) reflected, on a current financial
resource basis, an increment of $7,844,870.

. On a budgetary basis, actual expenditures exceeded actual revenues by $855,072.

. The N4unicipality issued bonds amounting to $12,555,000, to finance operations, the
acquisition of propefties and construction and improvement of municipal facilities
and roads.

3



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Using This Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of new financial statements with a change in the
focus from previous financial statements. The new focus is on both the Municipality as a
whole (government-wide) and the major individual funds. Both perspectives (government-
wide and major fund) allow the user to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for
comparison (year to year or government to government) and enhance the tvtunicipality's
accountability.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Government-Wide Financial Statements are designed to provide users of the financial
statements with a broad overview of the Municipality's finances in a manner similar to
private-sector companies.

The Statement of Net Asset presents information on all of the Municipality's assets and
liabilities, with the difference between both reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the Municipality is improving or deteriorating.

the Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Municipality's net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in the Statement ofActivities
that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. The Statement of Activities is
focused on both the gross and net cost of various activities, which are provided by the
government's general tax and other revenues. This is intended to summarize and simplify
the user's analysis of cost of various governmental services.

Fund Financial Statements

The Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about the l\4unicipality's most
significant funds, not the lVunicipality as a whole. The Municipality has only one kind of fund
which is the governmental fund.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the Government Wide Financial Statements.

4



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOI,IS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENI"S DTSCUSSTON AND ANALYSTS - (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2012

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

However, unlike the Government Wide Financial Statements, Government Fund Financial
Statements, focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information is
useful in evaluating the Municipality's near term financial requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental
funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government wide
financial statements. By doing so, users of the basic financial statements may better
understand the long-term impact of the lvlunicipality's near term financial decisions. Both of
the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

lnfrastructure Assets

Historically, a significant group of infrastructure assets such as roads, bridges, traffic
signals, underground pipes not associated with utilities, have not been recognized nor
depreciated in the accounting records of the Municipality. GASB 34 requires that such type
of assets be inventoried, valued ad reported under the governmental column of the
Government-Wide Statement. As of July \, 2002, lhe Municipality commenced the
prospective reporting of infrastructure assets, and reported historical costs for such assets
in the fiscal year ending.lune 30. 2007.

According to the requirements of GASB 34, the government must elect to either
(a)depreciate the aforementioned assets over their estimated useful life of (b) develop a
system of asset management design to maintain the service delivery to near perpetuity. lf
the government develops the asset management system, (the modified approach) which
periodically (at least every three years), by category, measures and demonstrate its
maintenance of locally established levels of service standards, the government may record
its cost of maintenance in lieu of depreciation. ln this particular respect, the municipality has
elected the use of recognizing depreciation under the useful life method and it contemplates
to continue this treatment on said basis.

5



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE

Net Assets

The Statement of Net Assets serves as an important indicator of the Municipality's financial
position at the end ofthe fiscal year. ln the case ofthe Autonomous Municipality of Dorado,
primary government assets exceeded total liabilities by $87,134,866 at the end of 2012, as
compared with $84,983,515, as restated, which reflect an increase of $2,151,351, over
previous fiscal year. The following condensed Statement of Net Assets of the Primary
Government shows on a comparative basis the most important components of the
$2,151,351 increase reflected in the Net Assets figure.

condens€d statement of Net Assets 2012 201,! change %

cr,,e,,r a"d orhe**r" $ 33386r?I $ rc,51rr2 S 25l1J19 r%
capitarAssets P4,760,500 121,585,575 7,L74,925 6%

Totar AsseG t61,,447,47! 152,100,427 9,746,644 6%

Cureniand other habilities 9,46a,069 10,700,562 11,232,4931 \L2%)
Longtem liabilities 65,244,536 56,416,750 A,A27,7AO L6%

TotatLiabirities 74,712,605 67,!L7,3L2 7,595,293 71%

lnvested in capiG assets, net of related
debi a3,039,500 74,L75,O4a 8.8A4.452 \2%
Restricted 24,397,323 27,323,04O e,925,763) eto/6)
unrestricted deficit (20,301,957) (16,514,619) (3,787,$a) 23%
Totalnetassets $ 87,134,a66 $ a4,983,515 _9ry1_ 3%

s200,000,000

s150,000,000

s 100,000,000

ss0,000,000

a2012

a20tt
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENTS DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITYAS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Changes in Net Assets

The Municipality's net assets increase by $2,151,351. Approximately sixty three percent
(63%) of the Municjpality's total revenue came from taxes, while thirty three percent (33%)
resulted from grants and contributions, including federal aid. Charges for Services provided
one percent (1%) of the total revenues. lnterest earnings one percent (1%) and
miscellaneous provided two percent (2%) of the total revenues. The Municipality's expenses
cover a range of services. The largest expenses were for general government, public works
and health and welfare. As follow, is presented a comparative analysis of government-wide
data. ln this analysis was determined the percentage change in revenues and expenditures
from prior year to current year.

ChangeCondensed StEtement of lativities

Operatinggrants and

c€p tal glants and contribuuons

Municipallcensetax
Municipalsales and use tax
Grantsand contr but ons not

restrrcted to spec,fic progEms

lnlerest and irvesinrent earnrngs

Cultureand recreation
Economic development
Comm unity deve opment

lnterest on longterm debt

Netassets, beginning as restated
Net assets, end of year

$ 357,919 $

9,246,344
455,455

15,450,427
3,T66,237
2,056,125

2,368,548
1,279,782

526,599
593,590

353,755 $

8,236,852
324,434

13,171,993
3,623,153
2,081,687

3,664,417
749399
508,a49
3!2,627

4,164 t%

\049.532 13%
130,621 40%

2,6T4,434 20%
M1OA4 4%
(25,s61) (1%)

(1,300,269) (35%)
430,383 55%
1T,T5Q 3%

280,962 9096

36,481,066 33,071,966 3,409,100 70%

12,969,294
2,442,919
4,402,L47
7,453,160

425,79L
120,563
220,305
634,940

4,142
2,O16,4\O

14,454,627
1,905,435
I,A41-,].42
7,711,310
2,534,7L8

87,399
533,154

2,620
3,940

1,699,634

(!489,329) (13%)
fi7,444 9%

(438,955) (5%)
(2s8,150) (3%)

Q,toa,327J (83%)
33.164 3a%

(312,853) (59%)
632,360 241%

122 3%
316,772 19%

34.329.715 38.177,427

(5,105,461)
90,088,976

2,L5L.35L
84,983,515

13.447.T12) (10%)

7,256,412
(5,1O5,461)

142%
(6%)

3o,4
-T---7,134s66 J 8-ApEaElt -5----r:i5l35l-
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Revenues 2012 aCharaes for services

-Operating grants and
.ontributions

r Capital crants and contributions

I Property taxes

rother lo.altaxes I

lMunicipalsales and use iax

I Municipal l;ceflse tax

EGrants and contributions not I

restricted tospecf,c prorrams 
I

ylnterest and investment earninas

EMi<.Fllrn..ur

Expenses 2012
.**" r-"r"."- I

rPubricsarety 
I

:::"i;:":k- |

I Community development

E lnterest on longterm debt

aurban development
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY'S INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

As noted earlier, the Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the Municipality's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources- Such information is useful in
assessing the Municipality's financing requirements. ln particular, unreserved fund balance
may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at
the end ofthe fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the l\runicipality's governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $27,749,438, an increase of $4,777,835 in comparison
with the prior year, as restated. There are reservations of fund balance amounting to
$25,801,851. The combined fund balances include restrided fund balance amounting to
$25,2a7,727 - Ihis is the fund balance that it is not available for new spending because it
has already been committed 1) to pay debt service $8,418,681, 2) to pay for capital
projects $16,292,783 and 3) for other purposes $576,263. There are nonspendable fund
balance amounting to $511,374, and assigned fund balance ot $2,750, that represent
resources for specific purposes but do not meet the definition to be classified as restricted
or committed (generally executive orders approved bythe lVayor) to pay for capital projects.

As of June 30, 2012, the General Fund, which is the main operating fund of the Municipality,
reflected an unassigned fund balance of $1,947,587.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Over the course of the year, the Municipality Legislature revised the Municipality's budget in
order to include increases in revenues that were identified during the course of the fiscal
year based on current developments that positively affected the lvunicipality's finances.
lncreases in budgeted expenditures were also made since the law mandates a balanced
budget.



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENT,S AND DISCUSSION ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

CapitalAssets

The Municipality's investment in capital assets for Governmental Activities as of June 30,
2012 amounts to $151,134,208 with an accumulated depreciation of $24,929,79A,
leaving a net book value ol $126,204,4110- For Business - Type Activities investments in
capital assets as of June 30, 2012 amounts to $3,971,648, with an accumulated
depreciation of $1,415,558, leaving a net book value of $2,556,090. This investment in

capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment, infrastructure and
construction in progress. lnfrastructure assets are items that are normally immovable and
of value only to the state, such as roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems,
lighting systems, and similar items-

The total increase in the Municipality's investment in capital assets in the current fiscal year
was about 6% in terms of net book value. Depreciation charges for the year totaled
$2,051,904.

The Municipality finances a significant portion of its construction activities through bond
issuances. The proceeds from bond issuances designated for construction activities are
committed in its entirety for such purposes and cannot be used for any other purposes. As

of June 30, 2012, the Municipality has $11,216,402 of unexpended proceeds from bond
issuances that are committed to future construction activities in Governmental Activities and
$156,402 in Business-Type Activities.

Debt Administration

The Puerto Rico Legislature has established a limitation for the issuance of general

obligation municipal bonds and notes for the payment of whjch the good faith, credit and
taxing power of each municipality may be pledged.

The applicable law also requires that in order for a lvlunicipality to be able to issue additional
general obligation bonds and notes such Municipality must have sufficient "payment
capacity".

Act No. 64 provides that a municipality has sufficient "payment capacity" to incur additional
general obligation debt if the deposits in such municipality's Redemption Fund and the
annual amounts collected with respect to such Municipality's Special Additional Tax (as

defined below), as projected by GDB, will be sufficient to service to maturity the
lvunicipality's outstanding general obligation debt and the additional proposed general
obligation debt ("Payment Capacity").

10



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENT'S AND DISCUSSION ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2012

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION- (CONTINUED):

The Municipality is required under applicable law to le\ry the Special Additional Tax in such

amounts as shall be required for the payment of its general obligation municipal bonds and

notes. ln addition, principal of and interest on all general obligation municipal bonds and

notes and on all municipal notes issued in anticipation of the issuance of general obligation
bonds issued by the Municipality constitute a first lien on the Municipality's Basic Tax

revenues. Accordingly, the Municipality's Easic Tax revenues would be available to make

debt service payments on general obligation

Municipal bonds and notes to the extent that the Special Additional Tax levied by the
Municipality, together with moneys on deposit in the Municipality's Redemption Fund, are

not sufficient to cover such debt service. lt has never been necessary to apply Basic Taxes

to pay debt service on general obligation debt of the Municipality.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXTYEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The Municipality relies primarily on property and municipal taxes as well as federal grants to
carry out the governmental activities. Historically, property and municipal taxes have been

very predictable with increases of approximately five percent. Federal grant revenues may

very if new grants are available but the revenue also is very predictable. Those factors were

considered when preparing Municipality's budget forthe fiscal year 2OL2-20!3.

FINANCIAL CONTACT

The Municipality's financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayer,

customers, investors and creditors) with a general overview of the lvunicipality's finances
and to demonstrate the Municipality's accountability. lf you have questions about the report
or need additional financial information, contact the Municipality's Chief Financial Officer at
PO Box 588, Dorado, Puerto Rico 00646{588, Telephone (787) 796-1230.

L!



Commonwe.lth ol Puen6 Ri..
Autonomous Municipality of Dorado

Statemenr ot Net Assets
June30.2012

cash and €sh equivarenE

tand, imprcvements, and onsltuclion in p@g@
O$s mpiiar sets, net of deprecistion

accounrs payabre and accrued riabiriti6

Du€ ro o$er govemm.ntar €nfijes

Due in more tnan one year

Totat tiabttitles

rnrested in capiLr fisers, net or Eraled debt

37,007.136

$1,494
41,422

_l_ :!.1!!!n

5,O29,527

3,991,594

5.O29.521

2,992,249

334,000

\2O,44O,7671

The notes to the financial statements are an ntegrarpartofihrssGremenis. !2



Commonwealth ol Puerto Rico

Autonomous Munlclpallty ol ooEdo
srarement ot Activltles

For theYear Ended iune 30,2012

llje notes 10 the finanoalstatements are an integratpan oltis statement. 13
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Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

Autonomous Municipality of Dorado
Reconcillation ofthe Balance Sheet -covemmental Funds

to the Statement of Net Assets

Forthe Year Ended June 30.2012

TotalFund Balanes - Govemmentat Funds $ 27.749,43A

Ahounts reported for Govemmenta Advnres in the Statement of Nel Asts

Gpftal asets u*d n governmentat activities are not linanciat reeur@s and fierefore,
are nol reported in thefunds.ln the curcnt penod, fie* amounG are:

Non depreiabte capitat asts
Depreciabte €prta a$et5
Accumutated deprearon

Totat Gpitat asets

some of the Municipalrvs revenu4 w llbe @lecled after year end burare not avaitabte
s@n enough 10 pay fo. the curenr pe od,s expend tue and therefo.e, aE defered in

$ a9,197,224

61,936,9a4

\24,929,79A)

59,192,000

249,556

22T,Aas

2,778,537

1,970.383

A.counls paFble accumulaled ac@rdrng 10 the amruat basis ot ac@unting. tn the cur€m
pe od thce accounts paFble amount to: 13,471,276)

some liabilnies are ao1due ard payable in the cu ent penod and theEfoG, are not
@porcd in the flnds. ThGe r6birrti6 @ns6i of:

GeneE bonds and notes paribte
P@perty taxes debl . Law 146
Pop€.ty laxes debl - Law 42

Totattongtem liabilnres (64,760,536)

Accrued ,nlerest payable are nd due and payabte in lhe cunent pedod and therefoE,
are not Eponed in lhe tuods Those interesl payabte amounr io: (90S,13O)

TotalNet Ar*t of cov€mmentar Activiri6 $ s4,923,966

The notes lo the financiat staterents are an integratpan oith s stalemenl. 77



Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Autonomous Municipality of Dorado

Reconcillation ofthe Statement of Reveoues.
Expenditures, and ChanEles in Fund Batances of

Govemmental Fu nds to theStatement ofActivities
For the Year Ended June 30,2012

et Chang. in Fund Balalre - Tot.t cdsnmemd Funds

Amouflls @ported for Sovernmentat activiries in the statemem of Activit es are diffeent be€use:

changes in Net ,eti the cost of thGe asseis is alocated over rhen estimated usetut ti@s as depreiation erpense. Th s
is the aholnt of capitalassts re@rded rn the cu(eni De od,

Govemmeftal Fufds report capital aseis eld as E@nues. Howewr. in the Gove.nment-wide statemem of Aclivities afd
changes in Net As*ts, D6post ol capltat asels rcqune removat of cost of the €pitat asets from the €pnat asets
akou{ o. rhe Govemmenr w dF sldr-rentoi Ner Assers

oepeial on E&ense on caprtai a*rs is Gpo.ted n fie Governmenlwide sratehents of Activities and change in Net
Asts, but they do mt @qu re the u* of curcnt financiat r6oures. Therefore, Deprecai6n expe.se is nor reported as
er0e.dilur6 In Go!e, nmemal Funds I nanc'ar siaremenG

lnteren apene change is reponed rn ihe Government-wide Statement of Activiues and Change in Nei A$ets. bur noi
requne the use ot cu(ent fnancial @sour@s. Theeto@, tnrerst erpen* chanee is not @oorted as exDenditures m
Governmental Funds Flnancial StalemenG.

Ac@unts par€b e change is eported in the Govemment-wide Statement of Activities and Change n Net ,eG, but not
reported as h the Governmental Funds, because they do not requne the use of curent lnsnciat reeures. This is the
amounl reported in the cutrent peiod.

Long tem debl i$uances are eponed in the Govemmenfwide statement ot Ner Asels, but not reoune the ue of
curent finarcral Eeur@g Therefo@, Long rerm debt issuances are not repo.ied as e&endturs in GowrnmentatFunds

Long €rm debts paymerts are epofted as expendt!rcs n the GovemmentatFunds Financiatstatements which requ G
the use ol c!(ent linancial r@ur@s Thereiore LonC rem debt payments are fot reported as expenditu@s in fie
Govemment Wlde Siatement of Acivnes and Ch6nge in Net A$eis.

4,TTT,&35

9,315,811

(2,O51,904)

(157,343)

(555,64d)

(797.475)

5U,649

Bonds proceeds p.ovide curcnl financlal reeur@s 1o GovemmentatFunds, but i$uing debt increee tongien tEbitrties
in the Governfrennw de siatemem of Ner As*ls. Rep6yment oi bond p ncipa is an expendirurc n covemmentat Funds.
but ihe €payment reduces ong rem i6bines rn the Governmenlwide $atement ol Net Assets. This ts the amoum by
which the debl pr@e€ds erced the debl*ryice pincipa paymenrs.

ChangE in Net A*ets ol Gdehmentat Activltes

(9,412,000)

$ 2,231,O1a

The notes lo rhe nnanctat statemems are an Integ6tpart of th s staremeni 18



Commonwealth of puerto Rico
Autonomous Municipality ol Dorado

Statement of Net Assets
Prcp etary Fund-Business Type Activity-Enterprise Fund

Year Ended June 30,2012

BusinessType

Activitiy
Enterprise

Curenl As6ets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash with fiscalagent

Iola I cu rrent assets

Property, and equipment:
Lard
Buildlng

Accumulated depreciation

Total non-current assets

Liabllities
Curenl Liabilities:
Eank overdraft

Total current liabilaties

Non+urent liabiUties:

Duewthin one year

Due in more ihan oneyear

Total rlon{urrent liabilities

Totalliabitities

lnvested in capiralAssets, nerofretated debt

L56,402

156,402

384,790
3,582,4s8

(1,415,558)

2,556,090

2,712,492

11,592

77,592

150,000
334,0O0

484,000

501,592

2,O72,090
138,410

Thenotestoihef nancia statementsarean nieglat panof thisstatement

2,2!O,900
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Commonwealth of puerto Rico
Autonomous Municipality ot Dorado

Statement of Revenues, Expensesand Changes in Net Assets
Proprielary Fund-Business Type Acttvity{nterprjse Fund

Year Ended June 30,2012

Operating revenues:

Charges for services

Tolal operaling revenues

Op€raling expenses:

Operations and maintenance

Depreciation and amortization

Tolal operaling expenditures

Business - Type
Activities

Enterprise

$ 180,913

180,913

118,078

89,571

207,U9

(26,736)

(52,931)

(s2,931)

(79,667)

2,290,567

2,210.900

Operaling income (Loss)

Non-ope€ting rcv€nue3 {expenses):
lnteresl expense

Total non-operating Gvenues (expenses)

Change in Net Assets

Total net assets-beginninq

Total nel assets-ending

The notes to the financial staternents are an integrat pan ofthis statement. 20



Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Autonomous Municipality of Dorado

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fun+Business Type Activity-Enterprise Fund

Year Ended June 30,2012

Cash Flows rrom Ooerating Actlvlties:

Receipts f rom Customers

lnterest paid

Payment to Su ppliers

Net Cash Provided (ljsed) by OperatinEi Activities

Cash Flows from Caoitaland Related FinancinE Acttvities:

Repayment of Bond

Net Cash Provlded (Used)in Capitaland Retated Financtng Activities

I'let Decrease in cash and cash wlth FiscatAElent, Restrlcted

Cash and Cash with FiscalAgent at Beginning of Period, Restricted

Cash and Cash with FiscalAgent at End ot Period, Restdcted

Reconciliation of Operatin{ lncome to Net Cash Provided {Used) bv
Ooeratinc ActiMties:

Operating lncome (Loss)

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating lncometo Net Cash Used by Operating r'ativities:

lnterest paid

Depreciation

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided (used) by OpeEting Actlvltles

Noncash lnvesting, capital and tlnanclng activities:

(27O,0O0)

(260,O96)

398,906

9,904

(270,O00)

$ f8,a10

(26,736)

s 180,913
(52,931)

(118,O78)

(52,931)

49,571

36,640

$ 9,904

The notes to the frnanciat statements are an integrat part of this statement. 2L



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Autonomous Municipality o, Dorado (the lvunicipatity) was founded on the year 1842.
The l,/unicipality's governmental system consists of an executive and legislature body. lt is
governed by a Mayor and a fourteen member lvlunicipal Legislature who are elected for a four_
yearterm.

The Municipality provides public safety, public works, culture and recreation, health and
welfare, community development, education, and other miscellaneous services.

The accounting policies and financial reporting practices of the lvunicipality conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("USGAAP") as
applicable to governmental units.

ln June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No.
34, "Basic Financjal Statements and lvanagement's and Discussion and Analysis for State
and Local Governments." -Ihis Statement, known as the Reporting Model, provides for the
most significant change in financial reporting for state and local governments in over 20 years
and affects the way the N4unicipality prepares and presents financial information. The
Statement was adopted as of .luly 1, 2002. ln addition to this Statement, GASB Statement No.
37, "Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and
Local Governments: Omnibus" and GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial Statement
Note Disclosures" have been adopted and are reflected in these financial statements.

As part of this Statement, there is a new reporting requirement regarding the capitalizataon of
local government infrastructure (roads, bridges, traffic signals, etc.). This requirement permits
an optional fouryear delay for implementation to fiscal year 2007. The Municipality
implemented the capitalization of infrastructure since July 1, 2006.

ln March 2009, the lvluniclpality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No.55, Ihe
Hierarchy of Generclly Accepted Accounting Principles for State and Locai Governments
(GASB No. 55), and GASB Statement No. 56, Codification of Accounting and Financjat
Reporting Guidance Contained in the A/CPA Statements on AuditinE Standards (GASA No.
56).

GASB No. 55 incorporated the hierarchy of USGMP for state and local governments into the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) authoritative literature. The
requirements in this Statement codify all USGMP for state and local governments so that they
derive from a single source.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

GASB No.56 incorporated into the Governmental Accounting Standards Board's (GASB)

authoritative literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance presented in the

l*"ti""n i""titrt" of Certified Public Ac;ountants' Statements on Auditing Standards This

Statement addressed three issues not included in the authoritative literature that establishes

;;;";ri;E principles-related party transactions' going concern considerations' and

Subsequent events.

ln fiscal year 2011, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No 54' Fund

Batance Repoftingiand Governmeital Find Type Definitions (GASB No 54)' which modified

tn"lni"rpr"i"tioni of certain terms within the definition of the special revenue funds and the

irp"" oi"u",iui,i"" tte Municipality may choose to report in those funds' GASB No' 54 also

ilfi"; il; capital projects fund type definition for better. alignment with the needs of

pr"pui"r" -o users. oifinitions of other governmental fund types were also modified for

clarity and consistencY.

The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies of the Municipality:

A. Component Units

ln evaluating how to define the Municipality for financial reporting pUrposes, management

i""'"o".ia!*o all potential 
"o'pon"ni 

units lhe decision to include a potential

"o.pon"ni 
,nit in the reporting entity was made by applying the provisions of statement

rl". i+, inl iin"n"i"t n"po,tind rntiti, of the GASB' as amended bv the GASB Statement

No. ig, .oetermining whether 6ertain organizarions Are cgrqg1"ll units. The basic, but

nJi tn" onfv 
"rit"rlon-tor 

inctuoing a potenti-al component unit within th.e reporting entity is if

elected officials ot a primary "government are financially accountable for the entity'

iin"nJ"r 
"""ornuoirity 

exists if tie primary governmental appoints a voting majority of the

"",,tv11"""-"g 
body, and if either onq oJ the following conditions exist: the primary

gor"lnrZnt 
"un 

-i.pose 
its will on the other entity orthe potential exists for the other entitv

io iii pr*io" 
"p""inc 

frnancial ;enefits to or (2i impose specific financial burdens on the

pril,.iti g"r"iri"",. I 
"econo "'iter.ion 

used in.evaluating potential component units is if

thenatureandsignificanceoftherelationshipbetweentheentityandaprimary
government are such that to 

"""rra" 
tn" entity f;om the financial reporting entity would

render the financial statements ;isleading or i;complete- Based on the above criteria the

Municipality does not have component uniis to include within its reporting entity'

23



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AI'IONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements

Financial information of the Municipality is presented in this report as follow:

1. Management's discussion and analysis introduces the basic financial statements and

provid-es an analttical overview of the Municipality's financial activities'

2.The government-wide financial statements (i e the statement of net assets and the

sta6ent of activities) report information on all the activities of the Municipality and its

componentunits,ifany.Governmentalactivities'whichnormallyaresupportedbytaxes
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-typed adivities,

it 
"nv, 

*fi"n rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support lnterfund

u"tiuitv n", o""n |."roveJ from these statements to minimize the duplicating effect on

asseG and liabilities within the governmental activities'

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a

JuLn tl.-"tion or segment is offset by program revenue Direct expenses are those that

are charges to customers or applicants who purchase' use' or-directly benefit from

!ooo", "J.ia"", 
or privileges ptouio"d uy a given function or segment and grants and

contributions that are restricted to meeting tfre operational or capital requirements of a

particularfunctionorsegment.Taxesandotheritemsnotproperlyincludedamong
prog€m revenues are repoted instead as general revenues-

3. Fund financial statements focus on information about the Municipality's major
-'goron."ntut funds. Major individual governmental funds are. reported as separate

columns in the fund financial statemend. Pursuant to the provisions set forth by GASB

No. 54, the Municipality reported the following governmental funds in the accompanying

GFFS:

General Fund - is the lvlunicipatity main operating fund used to account for and report

all financial and reported reso'rc"t and governmental actlvities except for those

lquir"o io be accounted for in another fu;d I is presumed that the Municipality's

jouernmentat activitles have been reported in the general Jund.except for transactions

ior whrch one of the following competiing reasons his requrred the use ot another fund:

iii i"g"r r."qrir"."nt", 1z; u(caae requirements or (3) the demands of sound financial

administration requiring the use of a governmental fund other than the general fund' lts

Lr"nu"" 
"on"i.t 

,uinly of taxes, lice-nses and permits' intergovernmental' charges for

services and other.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2012

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Speclal Revenue Fund - State and toca, Grants - is a ma.ior governmental fund used to

atcount for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other than trusts for

individuals, private organizations, or other governments or for major capital projects) that

ure ieiuifv restricteO or. committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt

service or caPital Projects.

Special Revenue Fund'Head Start - is a major governmental fund used to account for

a;d report the proceeds of revenues from Head Start, Early Head Start and Child and

Adult Care Food Program grants. The uses and limitations of this special revenue fund

are specified by federal and local statutes The objective of the Head Start program is to

promote the sc-hool readiness of low income pre-school children (ages 3 to 5)'

Capitat Prolects Fundssfate and locat grants - is a major governmental fund used to

aciount tor and report financial resources that are restricted or committed to

",.penJiture 
for capit;l outlays, including the acquisition or construction of major capital

fa;ilities, includingthose outlays financed by the general obligation bond proceeds (other

than those finanied by proarietary funds or in trust funds for individuals' private

organizations, or other governments) The use of the capital projects funds has been

tim-iteo to major capital ;cquisitions, construction or improvement activities that would

distort finan;ial resources trend data if not reported separately from the other

M;nicipality's operating activities. The routine purchases of minor capitalizable assets

(suctr as iurniiure, office equipment, vehicles and olh."'. rn1n9l capital assets or

improvementsl have been reported in the governmental fund from which financial

resources were used for the payment'

Capital Pro]ects Funds+edetal Etant - is a major governmental.fund used to account for

ani report financial |.""orr""Jth"t are restricted to expenditure for capital outlays'

including the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities The use of the capital

projecd funds has been limited to major capital acquisitions' construction or

im[.re."nt activities that would distort financial resources trend data if not reported

separately from the other Municipality's operating activities'

Debt Sevtce Fund -is a major governmental fund used to account for and report for the

accumulation of financial resouices that are restricted for' and the payment of' principal

and interestfor: (1) bonds payable for which debt service paymenlsare legally mandated

io t" 
"""ornt"d 

to|. in a debi service fund and (2) ceftain special long-term obligations

for which the Municipality is been accumulating financial resources in advance to pay

principal and interest payments maturing in future years'
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUIONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2012

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

4. Proprietary Fund Types focus on report any activities for which a fee is charged to

external users for goods or services. The Municipality reports the following proprietary

fund:

Entery se Fund - fhe Enterprise Fund, which was established in June 1996, is used to

accoJnt for operations (1) that are financed and operated in a similar manner as private

business enterprises where the intent ofthe governing body is that the costs ( expenses'

including depreciation) of providing goods and services to the general public on a

continui;g basis, are financed or recovered primary through uses, charges; or (2) where

the gov;ing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned'

expeises incirred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public

policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes'

The enterprise fund of the Municipality includes land and buildings known as

"Commercial Pavilion Rafael HernSndez Cot6n" located in 349 M€ndez Vigo Street at

Dorado, Puerto Rico. The main source of income comes from rent received from spaces

rented with formal contracts.

5. The notes to the financial statements provide information that is essential to a user's

understanding of the basic financial statements.

6. Required supplementary information such as the budgetary comparison schedule-

general fund and other types of data required by GASB'

7. Notes to the budgetary comparison schedule-general fund'

C. Financlal reporting plesentation

The accounts of the lrunicipality are organized on the basis of funds' each if which is

considereO a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are. accounted for

*iif, 
" ""p"tt" 

*t of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets' liabilities' fund

equity, revenues, and expenditures.

The lVunicipality has established the following fund categories, fund types' account groups

and discreet presentation of enterprise fund:

Governmental Fund Tvpes:

General Fund- Genetal Fund is the general operating fund of the Municipality' lt is used to

account for all governmental activity, except those required to be accounted for in another

fund.



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

1. ORGANTZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Speclal Revenue Fund - Local ard State Grants - Special Revenue Funds are used to

a;count for revenues derived from local funds, state grants or other restricted revenue

sources. The uses and limitations of each special revenue fund are specified by

Municipality ordinances or state statutes.

Special Revenue Fund - Sectlon 8 - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for

r;venues derived from section 8 choice voucher program' The uses and limitations of each

special revenue fund are specified by Municipality ordinances or federal and state statutes'

Special Revenue Fund - Head Stad ' ls the accounting entity in which revenues derived

f;om the federal agency are used to provide comprehensive heatth, educational' nutritional'

social, and othe; d;velopmentat services primarily to economically disadvantaged

piescnoot cnifaren (ages 3 to 5) and infants and toddler (birth through age 3) so that the

children will attain school readiness.

Special Revenue Fund - Other Fedetal Gtants - Special Revenue Funds are used to

accountforrevenuesderivedfromfederalgrants'Theusesandlimitationsofeachspecial
revenue fund are specified by Municipality ordinances or federal and state statutes'

Capitat tuolec5 Furds - State and Local Ghnts - Capital Projects Funds are used to

account foi financial resources used for the acquisition or construction of major capital

facilities.

Capitat Proiects Funds - Federat Gra'ts - Capital Project Funds are used to account for

financialresourcesusedfortheacquisitionorconstructionofmajorcapitalfacilitieS.

Debt Service Funds- Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of

resources for and the payment of, general long-term debt principal' interest' and related

costs.

Proorietarv Fund TvDes

Enterptlse Fund - The enterprise fund statements consist of Statement of Net Assets'

Statement of Activities, and Statement of Cash Flows This fund accounts for exchange like

transactions, like private enterprise and its operations are intended to be Self-supporting

itiorln 
"h"rg"" 

to users. These statements are prepared using the economic resources

meas;remeni focus' which concentrates on an entity orfund's net assets'

All transactions and events that affect the total economic resources (net assets) during the

period are reported. The statements are reported on the full accrual basis of accounting'

i"r"nr"" 
"r" 

recognized in the period earned and expenses recognized in the period in

which the associated liability is incu(ed.
27



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

1. ORGANTZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial preseniation

Government-wide,inancialstatements-TheaccompanyingGwFSarepreparedusingthe
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting subject to

the additional ruleS and limitations detailed below, revenueS (including interest on deposits

and investments) are generally recorded when earned and expenses are generally recorded

when a tiability is incuired, regardless of the timing of related cash flows'

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange-like

transactions are generallt recorded when exchange takes place ln exchange transactions'

each party to thelransaction receives and gives up essentially equal.values An exchange-

like trans;ction is one when there is an id;ntifiable exchange and the values exchanged,

inouit ,"f"t"0, may not be quite equal. The accompanying, basic financial statements

inclu-oe excrrange-rii<e transactions such as license fees' fines' penalties' forfeitures'

peimis, cnargei for seryices, and most miscellaneous revenues' which are recorded as

revenues when collected because they are generally not measurable until actually received'

The Municipality groups its non-exchange transactions into the following four (4) classes in

tfre accompanyirig basic financial statements: (a) derived tax revenues' (b) imposed non-

exchange rev!nues, (c) government mandated non€xchange transactions' and (d)

voluntary non-exchange transadions'

tn the case of derived tax revenue transactions, which result from assessments that the

N4unicipality places on exchange transactions, receivables and revenues are recorded when

the underlying exchange has occurred'

lnthecaseofimposednon.exchangerevenuetransactions(SUchas-propertytaxesand
municipal license iaxes), which resuli from assessments made by the Municipality on non-

to""t"r""t"f entities, including individuals' other than assessments on exchange

transaction, receivables are genirally recorded in the period when an enforceable legal

claim has arisen. Property taxes and municipal license taxes are generally recorded as

|.l*nr"" (n"t of 
"rounts 

considered not collectible) in the fiscal year when resources are

t"qrit"a1J o" ,"uo tor the firstfiscal yearthat the use of the resources is permitted'

For government-mandated non€xchange transactions (such as intergovernmental grants

anO ?ntrioutionsl, receivables and re-venues are generally recorded when all eligibility

[qrii"r"nt", tnui 
"re 

imposed by the provider, have be-en met For the maiority of grants'

the Municipatity must expend ,""ou'""" on the specific purpose or project before the

frouio"l. ,"irorr""" uny amounts. Therefore, revenue is generally recognized as qualifying

reimbursable expenditures are incurred'
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

For voluntary non-exchange transactions (such as donations and certain grants and

entitlements) receivables and revenues are generally accounted for in the same manner as

government-mandated non€xchange transactions discussed above.

Events that are neither exchange nor non-exchange transactions are recorded when it is
probable that a loss has been occurred and the amount of loss is reasonably estimated'

lnterests on deposits are recorded when earned since these revenues are considered both

measurable and available at June 30, 2012. Receipts of any type of revenue sources

collectedinadvanceforuseinthefollowingfiscalyeararerecordedasdeferredrevenues.

AccordingtoGASBNo.34,allgeneralcapitalassetsandtheunmaturedlong-termliabilities
are recorded only in the accompanying Statement of Net Assets' The measurement focus

and the basis of accounting used in the accompanying GWFS differ significantly from the

measurement focus used in the preparation of the GFFS Therefore, the accompanying

GFFS include reconciliations, as detailed in the accompanying tabie of contents, to better

identify the relationship between the GWFS and the GFFS.

Government Fund Financial Statements - The accompanying GFFS are reported using the

current financial resources measurements focus and the modified accrual basis of

accounting. Revenues are generally recognized as soon as they are both measurable and

available. hevenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the

currentfiscalyearorsoonenoughthereaftertopayliabilitiesofthecurrentfiscalyear.For
this purpose, the Municipality generally considers most revenues (municipal licenses taxes'

constructionexcisetaxes,salesandUsetaxes,interestsondeposits,intergovernmental
grantsandcontributionsandcertainchargesforServices)tobeavailableifcollectedwithin
!i*ty (OO) o"y" after June 30, 2072. Al )une 30, 2Of2, all revenues solrrces met this

availability criterion.

Property taxes are all considered susceptible to accrual if commonly collected within sixty

1OO1 Oays fottowing the end of the fiscal period, unless unusual circumstances justify a

greater Period.

otherrevenUesourcesconsideredSusceptibletoaccrualinclUdemunicipallicensetaxes,
salesandUsetaxes,constructionexcisetaxes,intergovernmentalgrantsandcontributionS.
interests on deposits and charges for services. These principal revenue sources meet both

measurability and availability criteria in the accompanying GFFS'
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ln a manner similar to the GWFS, but subject to and limited by the availability criteria
discussed above, all revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from
exchange, exchange-like transactions are also generally recorded when the exchange takes
place while all revenues, expenses, gains, losses, and assets resulting from non€xchange
transactions are recorded when an enforceable legal claim arises or when all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met, applicable.

lnterests on deposits are recorded when earned since these revenues are considered both

measurable and available at June 30, 2012.

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB lnterpretation No. 6, Recognition and Measurement of
Certain Liabilities and Expenditurcs in Govemmental Fund Financial Statements (GASBI

No. 6), in the absence of an explicit requirement (i.e., the absence of an applicable

modification, discussed below) the lvlunicipality generally accrues a governmental fund
liability and expenditure (including salaries, professional services, supplies, utilities' etc.) in

the period in which the government incurs the liability, to the extent that these liabilities are

normally expected to be liquidated in a timely manner and in full with current available
financial resources. The accompanying Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds generally

reflects only assets that will be converted into cash to satisfy current liabilities, Long-term

assets and those assets that will not be converted into cash to satisfy current liabilities are

generally not accounted for in the accompanying Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds. At

the same time, long-term liabilities (generally, those unmatured that will not require the use

of current financial resources to pay them) are not accounted for in the accompanying

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds.

The measurement focus of the GFFS is on decreases of net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. IVost expenditures are measurable and are recorded

when the related governmental fund liability is incurred. Allocation of costs, such as

depreciation and amoftization, are recorded in the accompanying Statement of Activities,

but are not recorded in the accompanying GFFS.

E. Assets, liabilities and net assets

1. cash, cash equivalents, and cash with fiscal agent- The Municipality's cash and cash

equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash with fiscal agent in the debt service fund represents special additional propeny tax
coilections retained by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and restricted for the
payment of the Municipality's debt service, as established by law. Also, cash with fiscal
agent consists of unused proceeds of bonds and notes issued for the acquisition of
equipment and construction of malor capital improvements.

Cash with fiscal agent is shown in the Enterprise Fund which is held by the Government
Development Bank and its use is limited to the expenditures associated with
"Commercial Pavilion of Dorado Rafael Hern6ndez Col6n".

Receivables and payables. Activity between funds that are representative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred
to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or
"advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the non-current portion of interfund loans). All

other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from otherfunds."

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, if any, are offset
by a fund balance reserye account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that
they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial
resources.

Receivables are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts, which
are determined, based upon past collection experience and current economic
conditions. lntergovernmental receivable in the general fund represents the balance
due from the Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM) resulting from the final
settlement; lntergovernmental receivables in the debt service fund represent the
amounts due from the CRIM resulting from the excess of current year property tax
collections over current year advances. lntergovernmental receivable in the capital
projects fund and in other governmental funds represent amounts owed to the
Municipality for reimbursement of expenditures incurred pursuant to federally funded
programs or state funded programs.

lnventorieg lnventories in the general fund is recorded as expenditure and,
consequently, the inventory is not recorded in the statement of net assets.

Capital assele Capital assets, which include property, equipment and infrastructure
assets (e.9., roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the
governmental activities column in the governmental-wide financial statements. The
Municipality defines capital asset as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than
$25 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are reported at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital
assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

2.

3.

4.
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed.

Capital assets of the l/unicipality are
the following estimated useful lives:

Descdotion

Buildings and site improvements

depreciated using the straight-line method over

Furniture and fixtures
Machinery and equipment

Defered revenues. ln the GFFS, deferred
situations occur:

UsefulLife

40years
40yeals
lOyears
5 years
5 years

3 to 5 years

revenues arises when

Capitalization threshold

$1
$1
$1
$1

$25
$25

one of the following5.

a. Potential revenue does not meet both the'measurable" and "available" criteria for
revenue recognition in the current period (unavailable revenue). As previously
discussed, available is defined as due (or past due) at June 30, 2012 and collected
within 60 days thereafter to pay obligations due at June 30. ln subsequent periods,
when both criteria are met, the liability for deferred revenue is removed and
revenue is recognized.

The l\4unicipality receives resources before it has a legal claim to them (unearned
revenue). ln subsequent periods, when the revenue recognition criterion is met, the
liability for deferred revenue is removed and revenue is recognized.

b.

6. Long-term obligationg The liabilities reported in the government-wide financial
statements include to general and special obligation bonds and notes, and other long-
term liabilities, such as vacation, sick leave, litigation, long-term liabilities to other
governmental entities.

ln the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond issuances
cost, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources, while bond issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as expenditures.
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

7. Compensated absences. Employees accumulate vacation leave at a rate of 2.5 days
per month up to a maximum of 60 days. Unpaid vacation time accumulated is fully
vested to the employees from the first day of work. All vacation pay it is accrued when
incurred in the government-wide financial statements.

Employees accumulate sick leave at a rate of 1.5 days per month up to a maximum of
90 days. LJpon retirement, an employee receives compensation for all accumulated and
unpaid sick leave at the current rate, if the employee has at least 10 years of service
with the Municipality. All sick leave pay and salary related benefits are accrued when
incurred in the governmental-wide financial statements when the employee meets such
criteria.

Claims and iudgments- The estimated amount of the liability for claims and judgments,
which is due on demand, such as from adjudicated or settled claims, is recorded in the
general fund when the liability is incurred.

Fund Balances- ln fiscal year 2011, the Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB

Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Repotting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions
(GASB No. 54), which enhanced the usefulness of fund balance information by
providing clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied.
This statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy upon
the use ofthe resources reported in governmental funds.

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB No. 54, the accompanying GFFS report fund balance
amounts that are considered restricted, and unassigned, based on the relative strength
of the constrains that controi how specific amounts can be spent, as described as
follows:

a. Nonspendab/e - Represent resources that cannot be spent readily with cash or are
legally or contractually required not to be spent, including but not limited to
inventories, prepaid items, and long term balances of interfund loans and accounts
receivable.

b. Restricted - Represent resources that can be spent only for the specific purposes
stipulated by constitutional provisions, external resource providers (externally
imposed by creditors or grantors), or through enabling legislation (that is, legislation
that creates a new revenue source and restricts its use). Effectively, restrictions may
be changed or lifted only with the consent of resource providers.

8.

9.
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1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARy OF StcNtFtcANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (coNTtNUED)

c. Asslgned - Represent resources intended to be used by the Municipality for specific
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed
(generally executive orders approved by the Mayor). lntent can be expressed by the
Municipal Legistature, the lvayor or by an official or body to which the Municipal
legislature delegates authority in conformity with the Autonomous Municipalities Act
of Puerto Rico, as amended. ln governmental funds other than the general fund,
assigned fund balance represents the remaining amount that is not restricted or
committed.

d. UnassiEned - Represent the residual classjfication for the lvlunicipality,s general
fund and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications.
ln other funds, the unassigned classification js used only to report a deficit balance
resulting from overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had been
restricted, committed, or assigned.

Negative fund balance amounts are assigned amounts reduced to the amount that
will raise the fund balance to zero, Consequenfly, negative residual amounts in
restricted, committed and assigned fund balance classifications have been
reclassified to unassigned fund balances.

The Municipality reports resources constrained to stabilization as a specified purpose
(restricted or committed fund balance in the general fund) only if: (1) such resources
meet the other criteria for those classifications, as described above and (2) the
circumstances or conditions that signal the need for stabilization are identified in
sufficient detail and are not expected to occur routinely. However, the Municipality has
not entered into any stabilization,like arrangements, nor has set aside material financial
resources for emergencies and has not established formal minimum fund balances
amounts as offor the fiscal year ended June 30,2OI2.

ln situations when expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are avaitable
in multiple fund balance classifications, the lVunicipality generally spends committed
resources firct, and then unrestricted resources. Within unrestricted resources, the
Municipality generally spends committed resources first, followed by assigned
resources, and then unassigned resources.

1O.Net Assets - Restricted net assets have been reponed pursuant to the provisions of
GASB Statement No. 46, Net Assets Restricted by Enabling Legislation (GASB No. 46).
Those net assets consist of net resources restricted by externit parties (such as debt
covenants, creditors, grantors, contributions, laws or regulations of other governments,
etc.), or net assets for which constraints are imposed by the constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.
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Enabling legislation consists of legislation that authorizes the Municipality to assess,
levy, charge or otherwise mandate payment of resources (from external resource
providers). Enabting legistation estabtishes restrictions if it inctudes a lega y
enforceable requirement that those resources be used only for the specific purposes
stipulated in the legislation. A legally enforceabte enabling tegislation restriction is one
that a party external to the Municipality (such as citizens, public interest groups, or the
judiciary) can compet the lVunicipality to honor. The lVunicipality periodica y
reevaluates the legal enforceability of an enabling legislation to determine if any of the
resources raised by the enabling legislation are used for a purpose not specified by the
enabling legislation or if the Municipality has other cause for consideration.

The classification of restricted net assets identifies resources that have been received
or earned by the Municipallty with an explicit understanding between the Municipality
and the resource providers that the resources would be used for specific purposes.
Grants, contributions and donations are often given under those kinds of conditions.
Bond indentures also often limit the use of bond proceeds to specific purposes.

lnternally imposed designation of resources, including earmarking, are not reported as
restricted net assets. These designations consist of management's plans for the use of
resources, which are subjectto change atthe discretion ofthe Municipal Legislature.

ln the government-wide statements, net assets are segregated into three categories:

a. lnvested in capital assets, net oirelated debt: Consist of capital asset balances net
of accumulated depreciation and outstanding balances of any bonds, notes and
other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets. This category should not include cash that is
restricted to capital assets acquisition or construction (unspent bond proceeds)
and any unamortized debt issue costs.

b. Restricted ,et assets: Represent net assets that are subject to restrictions beyond
the Municipal's control. These include restrictions that are externally imposed (by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments) or
restrictions imposed by the law through constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation (including enabting tegistation passed bythe government itseto.

c. Unrcsticted net assets: Represent net assets that do not meet the definition of net
assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt or restricted. lJnrestricterl
assets are often designated to jndicate that management does not consider them
to be available for general operations, These types of constraints are internal and
management can remove or modify them. Designations are not reported on the
face statement of net assets.
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ll.Accounting tor Pension Costs. On July 1,2OO7,the Municipality adopted the provisions
of GASBS No. 50, Pension Disclosute, which amended GASBS No.27, Accounting for
Pe,sions by State and Local Government Employers, by requiring disclosure of how the
contractually requjred contribution rate is determined by governments participatjng in
multi employer cost-sharing pension plans.

The Municipality accounts for pension costs from the standpoint of a participant in a
multi-employer cost-sharing plan. Accordingly, pension costs recognized in the
accompanying basic financial statements are equal to the statutorily required
contributions, with a liability recorded for any unpaid required contributions.

For the purpose of applying the requirements of GASBS No. 27, the state Government
of Puerto Rico is considered to be the sponsor of the Employees' Retirement System of
the Government of Puerto Rico and its lnstrumentalities (ERS) and System 2000, a
multi-employer cost-sharing define benefit pension plan and a hybrid defined
contribution plan, respectively, in which the employees of the l\,lunicipatity participate.
The Municipality is considered a participant, and not a sponsor, of these retirement
systems since the majority of the participants in the aforementioned pension trust
funds are employees of the Government of Puerto Rico and the basic financial
statements of such retirement systems are part of the financial reporting entity of the
Government of Puerto Rico.

l2.lnterfund and intra-entity transactiong The Municipality has the following types of
transactions among funds:

a. Operating Transfers- Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred as
"Operating transfer in" by the recipient fund and as "Operating transfers,out" by the
disbursing fund.

b. lntra-Entity Transactions- Transfers between the funds of the primary government
are reported as interfund transfers with receivables and payables presented as
amounts due to and due from other funds.
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13. Risk ,inancing- The Municipality carries commercial insurance to cover casualty, theft,
tort claims and other losses. lnsurance policies are negotiated by the puefto Rico
Treasury Department and costs are allocated among all the Municipalities of puerto
Rico. Cost of insurance allocated to the Municipality and deducted from the gross
property tax collections by the CR|M for the year ended lune 30, 2012 amounted to
$637,102. The current insurance policies have not been cancelled orterminated.

The Municipality carries insurance coverage for death and bodily injuries caused by the
automobile accidents. The insurance is obtained through the Automobile Accidents
Compensation Administration (AACA), a component unit of the Commonwealth of puerto
Rico. This insurance is compulsory for all licensed vehicles used on public roads and
highways in Puerto Rico. The annual premium is 935 per licensed motor vehicle. which
is paid directly to MCA.

The Municipality obtains workers' compensatjon insurance through the State lnsurance
Fund Corporation (SIFC), a component unit of the Commonwealth of puerto Rico. This
insurance covers workers against injuries, disability or death because of work or
employment related accidents, or because of illness suffered as a consequence of their
employment. Cost of insurance allocated to the Municipality and deducted from the
gross property tax collections by the Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM) for the
year ended lune 30, 2012 amounted to $435,921.

The lVunicipality obtains unemployment compensation, non-occupational dlsability, and
drivers' insurance coverage for its employees through various insurance programs
administered by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico's Department of Labor and Human
Resources (DOL). These insurance programs cover workers against unemployment and
provide supplementary insurance coverage for temporary disability, or death because
work or employment-related accidents or non-occupational disability and drivers'
insurance premiums are paid directly to DOL on a cost reimbursement basis.

Under Act No. 63 of June 2t,2O7O,Lhe Legistative Assembty of the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico, authorized the municipalities to procure and manage at their or,!n
discretion all insurance policies, including those related to health plans been provided
to the municipal employees. The Municipality also obtains medical insurance coverage
from one health insurance company for its employees. Different health coverage and
premium options are negotiated each year by the Munjcipality. premiums are paid on a
monthly basis directly to the insurance company.

37



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtFtCANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtC|ES (CONTTNUED)

14.Use of Estimates- The preparation of financial statements in conformity with USGMP
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses duringthe reported period. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates.

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Municipality maintains its deposits in various commercial banks located in puerto Rico
and Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB). proceeds from bonds and funds
related to certain grant awards are required by law to be held with cDB.

The Municipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 40 (GASB No. 4O), Depostt
and lnvestment Risk Disc/osure, an Amendment to GASB Statement No. 3. This statement
requires that state and local governments disclose essential risk information about deposits
and investments. The disclosure requirements cover four main areas: (1) credit risk, (2)
interest rate risk, (3) custodial credit risk, (4) foreign exchange exposure,

Credit risk - This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill
its obligations. ln compliance with the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, the
Municipality has adopted, as it's custodial and credit risk policy, the Statement of /ryestment
Guidelines for the Govemment of the Commonwealth of puetto Rico. Accordingly the
lVunicipality invests only in obligations of the Commonweatth, obligations of the United States
of Ameica, certificates of deposits, commercial paper, bankers, acceptances, or in pools of
obligations of the municipalities of Puerto Rico, which are managed by GDB. According to the
aforementioned investment guidelines, the Municipality does not invest in marketable
securities or any types of investments for which credit dsk exposure may be significant.
Therefore, the lrunicipality's management has concluded that the risk related to any possible
loss related to defaults by commercial banks on the Municipality's deposits is considered low
al June 30,20!2.

lnterest rate tisk - This is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will
adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The Municipality manages its exposure to
declines in fair values by: (1) not including debt investments in its investment portfolio at June
30,2Ot2, (2) limiting the weighted average maturity of its investments to three months or
less, and (3) keeping most of its bank deposits in interests bearing accounts generating
interests at prevailing market rates. At June 30,2072, the Municipality's investments in
certificates of deposits are recorded at cost, which approximates their fair value. Therefore,
the Municipality's management has concluded that at June 30, 2OL2,Ihe interest rate risk
associated with the Municipality's cash and cash equivalents is considered low.

38



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012
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Custodial credit risk - ln the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the Municipality's deposits may not be recovered. pursuant to the Statement of
lnvestment Guidelines for the Govemment of the Commonwealth of puerto Rico the balances
deposited in commercial banks by the lvlunicipality are insured by the Federal Deposit
lnsurance Corporation (FDIC) generally up to a maximum of $250,OOO per depositor.

ln addition, public funds deposited in commercial banks by the Municipality are fully securities
pledged as collateral are held, in the Municipality,s name, by the agents of the
Commonwealth's Secretary of Treasury. Deposits with GDB are uninsured and
uncollateralized. However, no losses related to defaults by GDB on deposlt transactions have
been incurred by the Municipality through June 30, 2072, Therefore, the Municipatity,s
management has concluded that at June 30, 2012 the custodial credit risk associated with
the Municipality's cash and cash equivalents is considered low.

Foreign exchange risk - The risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the
value of an investment or a deposit. According to the aforementioned investment guidelines,
the N4unicipality is prevented from investing in foreign securities or any other types of
investments in which foreign exchange risk exposure may be significant. Accordingly,
management has concluded that the foreign exchange risk related to the lvunicipality,s
deposits is considered low at June 30, 2012.

Under Commonwealth of Puerto Rico statutes public funds deposited in commercial banks
must be fully collateralized for the amount deposited in excess of federal depository
insurance. All securities pledged as collateral are held by the Secretary of the Treasury of
Puerto Rico. ln addition, the Municipality maintains deposits with the Government
Development Bank for Puerto Rico (cDB).

Deposits - The Municipality's bank balances in commerciat banks of $4,625,770, 586,556,
$245,12t, 2,397 ,631-, and $4,24L,495, in the general fund, special revenue fund-state and
local grants, head start, capital pro.jecG fund - local and state grants, and capital projects
fund - federal grants, respectively, were fully collateralized at.June 30, 2012. ln the other
governmental funds there were deposits with commercial banks of $705,092 that were fully
collateralized.

The deposits at GDB of $11,216,402 that is restricted princtpally for capitat projects in the
capital project fund - local and state grant, $26,148 restricted for operational expenditures in
the general fund and the $A327,465 in the debt service fund are unsecured and
uncollateralized, as no collateral is required to be carried by governmental banks,
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3. RECEIVABLES

A. lnte4lovernmenta, Receivabres - lntergovernmental receivable in the special revenue
fund-state and local grants represents governmental contributions receivable at June 30,
2012. Following is a detail ofthe intergovernmental receivable:

GovernmentalEntltv

Solid Waste Authority
Office of the Commisioner of irunicipatAffairc (OCtvtA)

Totat

lntergovernmental receivable in debt service fund represents property tax
June 30, 2012. Following is a detail of the intergovernmental receivable;

GovernmentalEntitv

Municipal Revenue Collection Center ('CRttV")

Total

Amount

$ 752,375
84.307

$24ASA2

receivable at

Amount

$ 97.216

$-91216

B. Federal grants rccelvables- Federal Grant receivable in Head Start fund represents
expenditures incurred not yet reimbursed by federal government or the pass-through
grantor. Following is a detail of the intergovernmental receivable:

ProEram Desc otlon

Early Head Start Program

Total

Amount

$ 6_014

$ 6-014

Amount

$ 28,OO0
45,327
34,067

$108-9i!6

Federal Grant receivable in other governmental funds represents expenditures incurred
not yet reimbursed by federal government or the pass-through grantor. Following is a detail
of the intergovemmental receivable:

Prc{ram Descriotlon

Hazard Mtjgation Program
Community Services Elock crant
Community Development Block Grants/ State s Program
others

Total

C. Othet Receivabla Other receivable ol $74,2t9 in the general fund represents accounts
receivable at June 30, 2012, related to municipat gym memberships $4,842, fjnes 98,196
and rent of $1,181.
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4. INTERFUNDTRANSACTIONS

lnterfund receivabres and payabres at June 30, 2012, and interfund transfers during the fiscar
year ended at June 30, 2012, are summarized as follows:

a. Due from/to other fund:

Receivable Fund Payabte Fund

b. Transfer in/out to othet fund

GeneralFund

GeneralFund

GeneralFund

GenelalFund

Other Governmental

Total

Thnsferout

GeneralFund

GeneralFund

GeneralFund

Special Revenue Fund-state
and localgrants

Head Start Program Fund

Capital Projects Fund State
& Local Funds

Other Governmental Funds-
FederalPrograms

Capital Projects Fund
FederalGrants

GeneralFund

PutDose

Payroll and related accruals
pajd and not reimburced

Reimbursable expenditures

Reimbursable expenditures

Reimbursable expenditUres

Reimbursable expenditures

ilatching Contribution

Puroose

l\,4atching Contribution

Matching Conrribution

Debt retirement

Transfer of funds for special

Transfer of funds for speciat

Transfer of firnds for special

Transfer of funds for speciat

Transfer of funds for speciat

Debt Retirement

Transfer in

Head Start Program Fund

Other Governmental Fund

Amount

$ 764,55a

150,O00

745,O84

74,236

!54,442

22.OOO

s L914-020

Amount

$ 220,000

50,260

62,403

10,oo0

315

54,429

5,32L

350,000

544.67A

$L297506

Debt SeNice Fund

Special RevenLre
and localgrant

Capital Projects Fund Special Revenue
state and localgrants and tocal grant

Capital Projects Fund-
state and local grants General Fund

Other Governmental
Funds General Fund

Other Governmentat Capitat projects Fund- Federat
Funds Grants

capital Projects Fund-
FederalGrants Debtservice

Totat
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets; those with an estimated useful live of one year or more from the time of
acquisition by the lvunicipality and a cost of $25 or more, are primarily funded through the
issuance of long-term bonds and loans. A summary of capital assets and changes occurring
in 2012, including those changes pursuant to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 34,
follows. Land and construction in progress are not subject to depreciation:

Governmenial Actlvities:

capital asset, not being depreciated:

Land
Construcnon in progress

Total capital assets not being

Capital ass€ts, being depreciatedl

Buildings
Buildings imprcvements

lnfrastructure improvements
Equipment
Furnishing

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for

Burldrngs
Buildrngs imprcvements

lnf rastructure improvements

Furnishing

Total accumulated deprcciation

Total capital assets being depreciated,

,une30.2011

$ 65,864,730
20.194-819

86.059.549

13,694,614
13,L12,907
11,651449
5,218.650
3,768,447

476,446
306,925
51A,L73

7.050.449

55.794-140

(6,439,785)
|t,2t6,542)
(3,497,343)
(L,17O,472)
(3,222,34L)

14OL,779')
(463,593)

(89,O58)
(6.416.a62)

Addltlons

$
6.924.772

6.924.772

60a,459
2,526,361
L.21t762

296,955
69a,6a8

74,426
753.153

6.179.136

(3s6,581)
(389,905)
l.235,294)
(353,210)
(306,202)

(28,852)
(39,913)
t29,892)

(312.055)

Retirements

$
r3.747.0971

t3.747.0971

(20,028)
(2,366)

(17,898)

t40.292\

19.903
2,OAO

17,494

Balance
,une 30- 2012

$ 65,864,730
23.332.494

49.197.224

14,303,073
15,639,264
1,2,923,251

5,515,605
4,447,107

479,452
306,925
518,701

7.403.602

51.936.944

(6,796,366)
(1,606,447)
.3,732,637)
1L,523,642)
(3,508,640)

(428,551)
(485,608)
(118,950)

16.724.gfi\

t24.929.7941

37.007_€6

$ 126101,410

(22.917-775\ 12.051.9041 39.441

32.880.365 4.127.232 1411r

Governmental activities ca pital assets,
net 9_Xr8.939,9l.4 $ Ll.os2.Oot $ 13J87508)
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5. CAPTTAL ASSETS (CONTTNUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs ofthe

Governmental activities:

General govem ment
Pubtic safety
Public works
Health and welfare
Education
Economic development
Culture and recreation
Com mu n ity development

Total depreciation eJeense€ovemmental activities

Municipality as follows:

$ 532,OO7
742,676
682,610

44,790
4,069

96,613
360,O70
219.069

$2.ott€ot

Eusiness - tvoe activities

Capital asset, not being
deprcciated:

Land and construction in proCress

Total capital assets not being
depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Building
Building jmprovements

Total capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Euilding

Tolal acrumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

Business - type Activities capital
assets, net

Balance
lune30.2011 Additions Retirements

$ 38a.790 $

Balance
June 30.2OL2

$ 38A.790

348.790

3,537,45a
45.400

3.542.858

( 1.415.558)

{1.415.55a)

2.767.300

388.790

3,537,458
45.400

3.582.858

( 1.325.987) (89.571)

r7.325.9a7\ (89.571)

2.256.47\ {89.571)

$ 2-6456fl $ t8gtzu $- $ 2556-090

Municipality as follows:Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs ofthe

Susiness -tvpe ActiMtles
Generalgovernment

Total depreciation expense-governmenta, activities

$ 89.571

$ 89-57L
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6. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUEO LIABILITIES

Accounts payable, and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2012 are summarized as follows:

specrarR.v.nue sDectat
f,deiueFlnd cadrarprcj{ts c.p arprclets

$ 637,303 $ 5,059 $ 39,512 3 663,519 $ $ $ s2,s57 $ 1,423.760

l l-61!111l 12?154 L i-069 $ 19512 $ 663119 t_ t_ L l2l57

7. DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES:

The amounts due to other governmental entities jn the General Fund include the following:

Govemmental Entitv

Puerto RicoAqueduct and Sewer Authority
General Services Admlnisvation

Total

8. DEFERRED REVENUES

Amount

$ ]42,021-
1.700

$ L4a72!

A. Municipal License Tax- The Municipality imposes a municipal license tax on all businesses
that operate within the Municipallty, which are not totally or partially exempt from the tax
pursuant to the lndustrial lncentives Acts of the Commonwealth of puerto Rico. This is a
self€ssessed tax based on the business volume in gross sales as shown in the tax return
that is due on April 24 of each year.

Entities with s€les volume of $1,000,000 or more must include audited financial
statements together with the tax return. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, the
tax rates were as follows:

1. Financial business- 1.50% of gross revenues

2, Other organizations- O.5O% of gross revenues

This tax is due in two equal installments on luly l and January 1 of each fiscal year. A
discount of 5% is allowed when full payment is made on or before April 15.

Municipal license taxes collected prior to June 30 but pertaining to the next fiscal year are
recorded as deferred revenues.

the deferred revenues of $2,992,289 in the general fund relates to municipal license tax
collected jn fiscal year 2011-12 that will be earned in fiscat year 2012,13.
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8. DEFERRED REVENUES (CONTINUED)

B. Federal Government- The deferred revenues presented in Head Start program Fund
represent the portion of federal grants received for which qualifying expenditures have not
been incurred. Deferred revenues from the federal government are as follows:

The deferred revenues presented in other governmental funds represent the ponion of
federal grants received for which qualifying expenditures have not been incurred.
Deferred revenues from the federal government are as follows:

Proqram Descriotion

Head Start Program ARRA
Head Sian Program
Child and AdultCare Food Program

Total

ProEram Description

Housing Oppo(unities for Persons with AIDS
Repayment Section 108 Loan
Emergency Management Performance Grant
Special Proglam for Aging Title lll
Emergency Shelter Grant
Depanment Enerry Germantown ASAP
Other Programs

Total

Amount

$ 305
52,605

$ 61-623

Amount

$ 5.687
49,324
57,772

7L4,697
20,000
47 344
20_425

$ 315;187

9. PROPERTYTAXES

The personal property tax is self assessed by the taxpayer on a return which is to be filed by
lvay 15 of each year with the CRllV, a governmental entity created by the government of
Puerto Rico as part of the l\4unicipal Governmental Autonomous Law of August 1991. Real
property tax is assessed by the CRIM on each piece of real estate and on each building.

The assessment is made as of January 1 of each year and is based on current values for
personal property and on estimated values as of !957 fot rcal property tax. The tax on
personal property must be paid in full together with the return by May 15. The tax on real
property may be paid in two installments by July 1 and January 1. TheCRlM is responsible for
the billing and collections of real and perconal property taxes on behalf of all the
municipalities of Puerto Rico- Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the CRIM informs the
lvlunicipality of the estimated amount of property tax expected to be collect for the ensuing
fiscal year. Throughout the year, the CRIM advances funds to the lvlunicipality based on the
initial estimated collections, as modified by the quarterly revisions of estimates required law,
The CRIM is required by law to prepare a liquidation statement on a fiscal year basis, whereby
a comparison is made between the amounts advanced to the Municipality and amounts
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9. PROPERTYTAXES (CONTINUED)

actually collected from taxpayers. This preliminary liquidation has to be completed on a
preliminary basis not later than three months after fiscal year-end, and a final liquidation
made not later than six months after year€nd, subject to the verification by iG lndependent
Auditors. lf the CRIM remits to the lVunicipality property tax advances, which are tess than the
tax actually collected, a receivable from the CRIM is recorded at June 30. However, if
advances exceed the amount actually collected by the CRllV, a payable to the CRIM is
recorded at June 30. At the date of this report, the Final Liquidation has not been issued by
the CRlN4.

On January 26, 2000, Public Law No. 42 was enacted which authorized the CR|M to obtain a
loan up to $200,000,000, and for a term not to exceeding 10 years, to allow for the financing
of the debt that the lvunicipalities of Puerto Rico have with the CRIM arising from final
settlements of property tax advances versus actual collections through fiscal year ended June
30, 2000. The amounts that the Municipalities will collect from additional property taxes
resulting from increases in the subsidy from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico to the
Municipalities are assigned through this law to repay such loan. The increase in this subsidy
was the result ofthe Public Law No. 238, enacted on August 15, 1999. On October 11, 2001,
Public Law No. 146 was enacted to amend Public Law No. 42, to extend the loan amortization
period up to 30 years.

Also, on October L7,2002, Public Law No. 172 was enacted, to provide as an option for the
Municipalities to include the debt that the Municipatities of Puerto Rico have with the CRIM
arising from final settlements of property tax advances versus actual collections for the fiscal
year ended June 30,2OO1 with the loan authorized through Public Law N0.42 enacted on
)anuary 26,20OO.

On June 26, 1997, Public Law No. 21was enacted which authorized the CRIM to sell property
tax receivables related to taxpayers who owned property taxes lrom 797 4 to 1996. The
property tax receivables were purchased by Public Financing Corporation, a subsidiary of the
Government Development Bank (GDB), with proceeds of a bonds issuance. This Law imposes
to the CRIM the obligation to replace any uncollectible property tax receivable with any valid
property tax receivables or equivalent in money.

A high percentage of receivables were determined to be uncollectible receivables, and
therefore, on October 11, 2001, Public Law No. 146 was enacted which authorized the CRll/
to obtain a loan to pay in advance the bonds issued by the Public Financing Corporation (a
GDB subsidiary), and any costs related to the transaction. Also, a term not to exceeding 30
years was authorized to the financing of the debt that the N4unicipalities of Puerto Rico have
with the CRIM arising from the sale of property tax receivables to the Public Financing
Corporation (a GDB Subsidiary).

The government wide statement of net assets includes an outstanding debt balance of
$227,085 and $249,556 related to Law No. 42 and Law 146 respectivety.
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9. PROPERTY TAXES (CONTINUED)

Residential real propety occupied by its owner is exempt by law from the payment of property
taxes on the first $ 15,000 of the assessed value. For such exempted amounts, the puerto
Rico Treasury Department assumes payment of the basic tax to the Municipalities, except for
property assessed at less than $ 3,500 for which no payment is made. As part of the
Municipal Autonomous Law of 1991, the exempt amount to be paid by the puerto Rico
Treasury department to the Municipalities was frozen as of January 7, 7992.

ln addition, the law grants a tax exemption from the payment of personal property taxes of up
to $ 50,000 of the assessed value to retailers having annual net sales of less than $
150,000.

The annual tax rate is 9.83% for real property and 8.53% for personal property of which 1.03%
of both tax rates are for the redemption of public debt issued by the Commonwealth of puerto
Rico. The remaining percentage is distributed as follows: (a) 5.870 and 4.0%, respectively,
represents the lvlunicipality's basic propeny tax rate which is appropriated for basiqs and
accounted for in the general fund. A portion of such amount is deposited in an equalization
fund together with a percentage ofthe net revenues of the Puerto Rico electronic lottery and a
subsidy from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Fromsuchfund,a distribution is madetoall
municipalities; (b) 3.0% and 3.50%, respectively, represents the ad valorem tax restricted for
debt service and accounted for in the debt service fund.

lO.MUNICIPAL SALES AND USE TAX

On July 29, 2007, an amendment to Act. No. 177 of )uly 4,2006, known as the "Tax Fairness
Act of 2006", was enacted with the purpose of establishing a mandatory sales and use tax of
1.5"/o at the Municipal level. The Municipalities of Puerto Rico are responsible to collect 1% of
the corresponding tax with the same exemptions and limitations that the portion collected by
the Treasury Department. The Act provides for an optional surtax on the unprocessed food.
This surtax must be approved by the Municipal Legislature. The Treasury Department is
responsible to create, the lvlunicipal Development Fund (.02), the lvlunicipal Redemption Fund
(.02), and the l\4unicipal lmprovement Fund (.01) with the remaining 0.05. The Municipatity
collected $1,403,512 during the year ended )une 30, 2OL2. Also, $652,613 from the
Municipal Redemption Fund is included in the Debt Service Fund.
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11.LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liability activity-governmental funds, for the year ended June 30, 2012, was as
follows:

D€sc ptlon

PrcpetyTax Debt-Law
1,46

Property Tax Debt - Law
42

tlMS Repayment Plan
Com pensaied Ab6ences
Craims a nd Judgments
Depa rtment of La bor

Totat

Beginning
Adjustment

$12,555,000

97,475

100,000

Endang

$41,160,000
4,620,000

249,55A

232.442
44,548

3,046,741
435,000

42,472
1,870,3a3

$(2,147,000)
(996,000)

(5,397)
(44,584)

(268,2O4)
(1a9,500)

e2.472)

$51,568,000
7,624,000

249,556

227,OA5

2.774.537
342,975

1,970,383

$2,490,000
836,000

11443

5,736

305,000
342,975

Long term liability activity-business type activity, for the year ended June 30,2012, was as
follows:

$55,7 45,222 $12,752,475 ! 1!19L191) $64,760,536 $3,991,594

Beglnnlng
Adjustment

$

Ending

$ 754,000 $ (270,000) s 484,000 $ 150,000

$ 754,000 $ (270,000) $ 4a4,000 $ 150,000

r. Legal debt margin- The Municipality is subject to a tegat debt margin requirement, which is
equal to 10% of the total assessment of property located within the Municipality plus
balance of the ad valorem taxes in the debt service fund, for bonds payable to be repaid
with the proceeds of property taxes restricted for debt service. ln addition, before any new
bonds are issued, the revenues of the debt service fund should be sufficient to cover the
projected debt service requirement. Longterm debt, except for the bonds and notes
payable (excluding notes payable to the Land Authority), is paid with unrestricted funds.

Bonds Payable- The Municipality issues general and special obligation bonds to provide
funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. Bonds payable
outstanding at June 30, 2012 are as follows:

2.
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11.LONG-TERM LtABtLtTtES (CONTTNUED)

Descriotion

1995-Public improvement bond for infrasvucture improvements with an originat
amount of $2,75O,O00 due in installments of $22O,OOO to $28O,OOO through JLrty 1,
2015

1997 Specialobligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of $29O,0OO due in installments of $20,OOOro $25,OOOthrough Juty 1,2016

1997 Special obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originat amount
of $110,OOO due in installments of $5,000to $1O,00O through.Juty 1,2016

1998 General obligation bond for capitalasset improvements with an originat amount
of$1,065,000 due in irstallments of $105,000to $115,000through luty 1,2013

1999 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originat amount
of $3,675,000 due in instaliments of$335,o00to $39o,ooothrough Juty 1,2014

20OO General obligatron bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of$65,000 due in installments of $5,O0Othrough Juty 1,2014

2OO0 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements wth an original amount
of$1,500,OO0 due in installments of$7O,O00to L45,OOOthrough luiy 1,2021

2001 General obligation bond for infraskucrure improvements with an originat amount
of $310,OO0 due in installments of $10,000to $30,OO0 through July 1,2026

2OO2 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amounr
of$2,85O,0OO due in instalhents of $80,000to $250,000 through July 1,2027

2004 General obligation bond for operational expenses with an original amount of
$55O,O00 due in installments of $15,00Oto $4O,0OOthrough Juty 1,2029

2004 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originat amount
of $3,15O,00O due in installments of $135,OOOto $24O,0OOthrough Juty 1,2024

2OO4 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an origtnat amount
of $115,0OO due ln installments of $5,0OO to $1O,0OO through July 1. 2024

Balance at
June 30.2012

$ 775,000

90.000

30,o00

115,000

750,OO0

10,o00

955,OO0

240,OOO

2,290,OOO

455,O00

2,250,OO0

75,O00
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Desc otion

2004 General obligation bond for infrastructure rmprovements with an originat amount
of$1,860,000 due in installments of $aO,00Oro $145,000 through Juty 1,2024

2005 General obligation bond for operatlonal expenses-housing rehabititation with an
original amountof $50,000 due in installments of$5,OO0 through Juty 1,2015

2005 General obligation bond for infrastructure amprovements with an originat amount
of $945,OO0 due in installments of$60,000to $a5,00Othrough Juty 1,2020

2OO5 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originat amount
of$5,a25,OO0 due in installments of$360,000to $535,000through Juty 1,2020

2006 Special obligation bond for propeny acquisition with an originat amount of
$532,O0O due rn instaltments of $13,0001o $42,0OOthrough Juty 1,2030

2OO7 Special obligation bond for lnfrastructure improvernent with an originat amount
of$1,645,000 due in installments of $85,OOOto $175,O0Othrough luty 1,2022

2008 General obhgation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originat amount
of $3,650,000 due n instailments of$65,000to $305,000through Juty 1,2033

2008 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originat amount
of$22O,O0O due in installments of $20,OOOto $30,0OOthrough July 1,2018

2008 General obligation bond for lnfrastructure improvements wrth an originat amount
of $370,OOO due in installments of$5,000 io $35,0OOthrough luly 1,2033

2008 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originat amoLrnt
of$3.265,000 due in installments of $60,000to $270,O0O through Juty 1,2033

2008 Specialobligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of $3,720,OO0 due in installments of$75,O00to $31O,OOOthrough July 1,2032

20Og General obligation bond for infrastructure irnprovements with an o ginal amount
of $3,395,000 due in installments of $90,0OOto $310,O0O through JLrty 1,2029

2OO9 Special obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of$93O,0OO due rn instailments of $25,OOOto $85,000 through Juty 1,2028

2O1O General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originat amount
of $1,82O,O0O due rn installments of $40,000to $155,000 through luly 1,2032

Balance at
)une 30.2Oa2

1,325,O00

15,000

590,000

3,630,OOO

456,O00

7,275,OOO

3,415,O00

150,OO0

350,O00

3,O50,OO0

3,525,O00

3,140,OOO

470,o00

1,750,OO0
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11. LONG-TERM LTABTLITIES (CONTINUED)

Descriotion

2O1O General obligation bond for jnfrastructure improvements with an original amount
of $1,O95,OO0 due in installments of$2O,O00to $9O,O0Othrough July 1,2035

2O1O Special obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of $537.OOO due in installments of $30,OOO to $62,000through luly 1, 2022

2oll General obligation bond for infrastructurc improvements with an original amount
of$1,9OO,OOOdue in installments of $3O,OOOto $160,000 through lulv 1,2036

2oll General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an origlnal amount
of$3,305,000 due in installments of $60,000 to $290,OOOthrough JLrlv 1,2033

2oll Special obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of $754,OOOdue in installments of$130,000to $174,OOO through lulv 1,2016

2oll General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of $8O5,OOO due in installments of $30,000 to $85,OO0 through lulv 1,2025

2012 Generalobligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originalamount
of $2,315,000due in installments of $55,OOOto $215,OOOthrough July 1, 2031

2012 General obligation bond for operational expenditures with an original amount of
$1o,24O,OOo due in insta llments of $ 150,000 to $a55,o0o through lulv 1,2036

Total genelal obllgatlon bonds

These bonds, except the 1997 Series bonds for $110,000 and $290,000, and the 2006
Series bonds amounting to $532,000, are payable from the special ad valorem property tax
of 2.OO% which is restricted for debt service and retained by the Government Development

Bank for Puerto Rico for such purposes The 2OO8 Series bond amounting to $$3,720,000,
the 2OO9 bond for $$93O,OOO, the 2010 Series bond for $537,000, and the 2011 Series

bond amounting $8O5,OOO are payable with the revenues generated from the collection of
the .2% ofthe municipal sales and use taxes Redemption Fund.

The 2011 Series bonds amounting to $754,000 is payable by the self-generated revenues

from the "Pabell6n Rafael Hernandez" charges for services and is accounted for in the

business type activity.

Balance at
lune 30.2012

1,060,000

442,000

1,a70,000

3,245,OOO

4a4,OO0

780,O00

2,315,OO0

10,240,000

$ 52,052,000
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11.LONG-TERM LtABTLTTTES (CONTTNUED)

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonds payable are as follows:

Year Ending
lune30.

2073
2074
2045
2016
2047
20La-2022
2023-2027
2028-2032
2033-2037
Total Bonds Payable

Princioal

$ 2,640,000
2,705,O00
2,500,000
2,737,OOO
2,253,OOO

12,134,000
11,O32,000
10,906,000

5,745,OO0

hterest
$ 2,774,092

2,4o9,155
2,94O,470
2,794,132
2,715,678

11,600,361
7,466,264
4,O42,4LO

494,425

--t3r,?soB31$ 52,052,O00

3. Notes Payable The proceeds of the lssuance of notes payables were used principally to
pay debt incurred in prior years and to cover the expenditures of a special event. The notes
are payable as follows:

Tvoe of notes

2OO5Series
2007 Series
2008 Series
2OO8Series
Section 108 Series 2008 A
2008Series
2009 Series
2009 Series
2010 Seies
2010 Series
20llSeries

Ofignal Range of Balance at
Amount lnterest rates June 30.2012

345,OO0 6%to7% $ 60,000
480,OO0 1.774%to5% 165,000
230,OO0 7.774%to6% 115,OO0
245,OO0 !.72% 60,000

5,500,000 5.txva 4,8aa,o00
925,000 1,.748%i.o606 455,000
125,O0O 7.744%to5% 55,000

1,141,000 1.714% to 6.50% 1,0a6,0OO
345,000 4.73% 260,000
65,000 5%ro 7% 50,000

4a0,0OO 6%to 7.5O% 43O,OO0

Maturity
Dele

7 ! 2013
7-a-2074
7.4-2015
7-a-20a3
7-t-2024
7-7-2045
7 7 2014
7-7-2033
7-7-2077
712077
7-1,.2074

Total notes payable $ 7,624,000

This notes, except the 2OOg and 2077 Series are payable from the special ad valorem
property tax of 2.OO% which is restricted for debt service and retained by the Government
Development Bank for Puerto Rico for such purposes. The Series 2009, amounting
1,141,000, and the 2011 Series amounting to $480,000 are payable with the revenues
generated from the collection of the .2% of the municipal sales and use taxes Redemption
Fund.
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11. LONG-TERM LTABtLtTtES (CONTTNUED)

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for notes payable are as follows:

Year Ending
lune 30.

2073
2014
2015
20a6
20a7
20a8-2022
2023-2021
202A-2032
2033-2037
Total

Princioal

$ 836,000
756,O00
666,O00
47a,OOO
486,000

1,785,000
1,780,000

648,000
196,O00

lrDlergst

$ 313,264
332,301
308,654
27a,to7
252,303
960,411
502,315
a3L,a4a

12,935
-53,092J31$ 7.624,000

4.

5.

LIMS Repayment Plan- During the fiscal yeat 2OO1-2OO2,lhe Municipality authorized the
CRIM to retain the corresponding portion for the financing pro.ject of Land lnformation
Management System - LIMS, contracted by the CR|M. A total of $746,093 is to be
retained in a ten years period at an interest rate of 5.95%, until November 28,2011. At
June 30,2Ot2,lhe amount has been paid in full.

Compensated absences- The government wide statement of net assets includes
$1,511,307 of accrued sick leave benefits, and approximately $7,267,230 of accrued
vacation benefits, representing the Municipality's commitment to fund such costs from
future operations.

Claims and Judgments - This amount represents the balance related to legal claims at
June 30, 2012, as descnbed rn Note 15.

Landfill obligation- State and federal laws and regulations require the Municipality to place
a final cover on its landfill site when closed and perform certain maintenance and
monitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty years after closure. ln accordance with
Statement No. 18 of the GASB, "Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and
Post Closure Care Costs", the Municipality has performed a study of the activities that
need to be implemented at the Municipality's landfill to comply with applicable state and
federal regulations. During June 30, 2004, the Municipality entered in an agreement with
a contrador to complete the final cover of the landfill for a total cost of $873,569 and
additional inspection, monitoring, and supervision costs amounting to $90,079 for a total
cost of $963,648. Amounts paid to contractors, related to closing costs prior to the current
fiscal year totaled $957,886. Duting 2O7L-2O12 a total of $8,379 were paid to others
suppliers related to closing cost. Based on this, the Municipality has recognized $20,383
as the Municipality's estimated current cost for landfill closure as of June 30, 2072. fhe
preliminary annual estimate of post closure costs has been adjusted to approximately
$1,950,000 for a period of approximately 25 years. Actualcosts may be different dueto

6.

7.
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11. LONG-TERM LtABtLtTtES (CONTTNUED)

inflation, changes in technology, or changes in laws and regulations. As of June 30, 2012,
the lvlunicipality's landfill facilities have been closed. The balance of closure and post-
closure costs of $20,383 and $1,950,000, respectively, are reported in the government-
wide statement of net assets.

12.PENSION PLAN

The Employee's Retirement System of the Commonwealth and its lnstrumentalities (the
Retirement System) is a cost-sharing multiple defined benefit pension plans sponsored by,
and reported as a component unit of the Commonwealth of Pueto Rico. All regular employees
of the l\4unicipality under 55 years of age at the date of employment become members of the
Retirement System as a condition to their employment.

The Retirement System provides retirement, death and disability benefits pursuant to
legislation enacted by the Commonwealth's legislature. Disability retirement benefits are
available to members for occupational and non-occupational disabilities. Retirement benefits
depend upon age at retirement and the number of years of creditable service. Benefits vest
after ten years of plan participation.

Members who have attained 55 years of age and have completed at least 25 years of
creditable seNice or members who have attained 58 yeaIs of age and have completed ten
years of creditabie service are entitled to an annual benefit payable monthly for life.

The amount of the annuity shall be one and one-half percent of the average compensation, as
defined, multiplied by the number of years of creditable service up to twenty years, plus two
percent of the average compensation, as defined, multiplied by the number of years of
creditable service in excess of 20 years. ln no case will the annuity be less than $200 per

month-

Participants who have completed at least 30 years of creditable service are entitled to receive
the Merit Annuity. Panicipants who have not attained 55 years of age will receive 65 percent
of the average compensation, as defined; otherwise they will receive 75 percent of the
average compensation, as defined. No benefits are payable if the participant receives a

refund of his/her accumulated contributions.

Commonwealth legislation requires employees to contribute 5.775% for the first $550 of their
monthly gross salary and 8.275o/o fot lhe excess over $ 550 of monthly gross salary. The

Municipality is required by the same statute to contribute 9,275% of the participant's gross

salary.

On September 24, 1999, an amendment to Act. No. 447 of May 15, 1951 (which created the
Retirement System), was enacted with the purpose of establishing a new pension program
(System 2000). Employee's participation in the current system as of December 31, 1999,
may electto stay in the defined benefit plan or transfer to the new program. Personsjoining
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the Municipality on or after January 1, 2000, will only be allowed to become members of
System 2000. System 2000 will reduce the retirement age from 65 years to 60 for those
employees whojoined the current plan on orafterApril 1, 1990.

System 2000 is a hybrid defined contribution plan, also known as a cash balance plan. Under
this new plan, there will be a pool of pension assets, which wi be invested by ERS together
with those of the current defined benefit plan. The Commonwealth of puerto Rico will not
guarantee benefits at retirement age. The annuity will be based on a formula which assumes
that each year the employee's contribution (with a minimum of 8.275% to the employee,s
salary up to a maximum of 10%) will be invested in an account which will either: (1) earn a
fixed rate based on the two-year Constant Maturity Treasury Note or, (2) earn a rate equal to
75% of the return of the ERS'S investment portfolio (net of management fees), or (3) earn a
combination of both alternatives. Participants will receive periodic account statements similar
to those of defined contribution plans showing their accrued balances. Disability pensions will
not be granted under System 2OOO. The employer's contribution (9,275o/o of the employee's
salary) will be used to fund the current plan.

lf at the time of retirement accumulated benefits amount to $10,000 or less may elect to
receive a lump sum distribution up to the accumulated benefits. Under the new program the
retirement age is reduced from 65 to 60 for those employees who joined the current plan on
or afterApril 1, 1990.

FundinE Policy

The authority under which the funding policy and the obligations to contribute to the ERS and
System 2000 by the plans'members, employers and other contributing entities (state and
municipal contributions), are established or may be amended by law.

Contribution requirements are established by law and are as follows:

Municipality
Employees:

Hired on or before lvarch 31, 1990

Hired on or before April 1, 1990

Annual Cont bution

9,275% of gross salary

5.775% of gross salary up to $6,600
8.275% of gross salary over $6,600
8.275% of gross salary

The Municipality contributions during those years are recognized as total pension
expenditures/expenses in the category of administration as follows:
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12. PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Fiscalvear

201,2

20LL

2010

Law No. 447

$ 344,089

$ 369,640

$ 376,666

Svstem 2OOO

$ 267,049

$ 261,730

$ 257,349

These amounts represented the 100yo of the required contribution for the corresponding year.
Additionally, changes made in the types and amounts of benefits offered by special laws and
cost of living adjustments, led to a one-tine recommended contribution to fund the retroactive
adjustment related to the changes.

Additional information on the Retirement System is provided in its financial statements for the
year ended )une 30, 2072, a copy of which can be obtained from the Retirement System,
Minillas Station, PO Box 42003, San Juan, PR 00940-2003.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2012

14.RISK MANAGEMENT

The Property Division is responsible of assuring that the Municipality's property is properly

insured, Annually, the Property Division compiles the information of all property owned and its
respective market value. After evaiuating this information, the Property Division submits the
data regarding the Municipality's properties to the Public lnsurance Department at the

Treasury Department of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico who is responsible for purchasing

all property and casualty insurance policies of all municipalities- Settled claims have not

exceeded commercial coverage in any of the past three fiscal years

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

a. Claims and lawsuils:

The lvunicipality is a defendant in a number of lawsuits arising principally from the ordinary

course of the Municipality's activities.

With respect to pending and threatened litigation, the Municipality has reported liabilities of

$342,975 lot awarded or anticipated unfavorable judgments in the Government-Wide

Financial Statements. This amount was included in the financial statements and represents

the amounts estimated as a probable liability or a liability with a fix or expected due date,

which will require future available financial resources for its payments.

It is the management's opinion, based on the advice of the legal counsel, that the potential

claims against the lrunicipality not covered by insurance will not materially affect the financial

resources for its payment.

b. FederalGrants:

The Municipality participates in a number of federal financial assistance programs funded by

the Federai Goternment. Expenditures finance by these programs are subject to financial and

compliance audits by the appropriate grantor or grantee. The amount, if any, of expenditures

which may be disaliowed by such audits cannot be determined at this time, although the

Municipality management expects such amounts, if any, will not be material'

c. Other Commitments:

At .lune 30, 201.2, the general fund had commitments of approximately $184,000 for

executory purchase orders or contracts that will be honored during the subsequent year'
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16. FUTURE ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued the following statements that have effective dates after June 30, 2012:

a. GASB Statement No. 60, Accounting and Finanaial Reporting fot Sevice
Concession Arrangements (GASB 60). The objective ofthis Statement is to improve
financial reporting by addressing issues related to service concession
arrangements (SCAS), which are a type of public-private or public-public
partnership. This Statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15,
20LL.

GASB Statement No. 67, The Financial Reportin€) Entity: Omnibus - an amendment
of GASB Statements No. 74 and No. 34 (GASB No. 61). The objective of this
Statement is to improve financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting
entity. The requirements of Statement No.74, The Financial Reportin€! Entity, and
the related financial reporting requirement of Statement No. 34, Basic Financral
Statements - and ManaEement's Discussion and Analysis - fot State and Local
Governments, were amended to better meet user need and to address reporting
entity issues that have arisen since the issuance of those Statements. This
Statement is Effective for periods beginning allet )une 75,2O!2.

GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Guidance Contained in Prc-Novembet 30, 7989 FASB and AICPA pronouncements.
The objective of this Statement is to incorporate into the GASB'S authoritative
literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance that is included in the
following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, which does
not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements; 1) Financial Accounting
Standard Board (FASB) Statements and interpretations, 2)Accounting Principles
Boards Opinions, 3) Accounting Research Bulletins of the American lnstitute of
Certified Public Accountants'(A|CPA) Committee on Accounting Procedures. This
Statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2011.

GASB Statement No. 63, Financial ReportinE Deferred Outflows of Resou/ces,
Defefied lnflows of Resources and Net Positior. The objective of this Statement is
to provide financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources. Concepts Statement No. 4, E/ements of Financial
Statemerts, introduced and defined elements as a consumption of net assets by
the government that is applicable to a future reporting period, and an acquisition of
net assets by the government that is applicable to a future reporting period,
respectively. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statements
for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. Earlier application is encouraged.

b.

d.
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16.FUTURE ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS (CONTINUED)

e. GASB Statement No. 65, ltems Previously Reported as Assets and Liabitities. The
objective of this Statement is to establishes accounting and financial reporting
standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of
resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities and
recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that
were previously reported as assets and liabilities. This Statement also provides
other financial reporting guidance related to impact of the financial statement
elements deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, such as
changes in the determinations of the major fund calculations and limiting the use
of the term deferred in financial statement presentations. The provisions of this
Statement are effedive for financial statements for periods beginning after
December 15, 2012. Earlier application is encouraged.

t. GASB Statement No- 66, Technical Corrections - 2072 - an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 10 and No. 62. The objective of this Statement is to improve
accounting and financial reporting for a governmental financial reporting entity by
resolving conflicting guidance that resulted from the issuance of two
pronouncements, Statements No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental
Fund Type Definitions, and No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements. The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial
statements for periods beginning after December 15,2012, Eatliet application is
encouraged.

Post frscal vear 2012-2073

a. GASB-67 Financial Repofting for Pension Plans - an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 25 is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2013.

b. GASB-68 Accourting and Financial Repofting for Pensions - an amendment
of GASB Statement No. 27 is effective for periods beginninE after June 15,
2074.

The impact of these statements on the Municipality's basic financial statements has not yet
been determined.
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17. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

A. GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following restatemenG have been made in the governmental fund flnancial
statements, which are reported as an adjustmentto the beginning fund balances:

C€Pnd Capnal
sp€ciar Poi.crs Fund Pojecls

Spedal Fdenue R*nueFund -state& Fund- OltEr
GereEl Fund - SraE& -H@dstan L@l G€ms FedeEl Debl Se ie Gddnmental

Ds ption Fund L@l Grants PrcgEm Gant! Flnd Fund Toral

Fund bdane
(delicit),
b€einn ne $ (5,039,207) $ (207,57a) $ $77,t26,113 $4,a?37o $ 6,120,921 $ 479,759 $23,0o7,97a

To adlusr

v un@nectjbre

lunds r1a5.O4A) 520

,esrar€d !l!2242!a S,____i20Zn58r $- $172z1866 $ 4527!70 l---6J2!92-1 $ 479759 12217L603

B. GOVERNMENTAL WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following restatements have been made in the governmental wide financial statements,
which are reported as an adjustment to the beginning net assets:

GovernmentEl Busin€6etype

De$!i!t!g! Aqjg!!€ Actlvltles Ielsl
Netasets, beginning $ 82,646,a51 $ 2,290.567 $ 84,937,418

To cotrect ba ance of oepa rtment of Labor
paymenrpran a2,472 42,472

To adjust uncolleclible loa ns 1o other funds (36-3 751 (36.37 5)

Netassets, beginningas restated S 82-69214I] $ 229O56f 93L9&1515

61



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

- On November, 2a, 2Ot2, the l/unicipal Legislature approved the issuance of a general

obligation bond for the amount of $1,145,000, for the improvement and reconstrudion of
several facilities. Repayment of the bond is scheduled from July 2013 through July, 2027.

On December 11, 2O\2,lhe Municipal Legislature approved an increase in tax rates for real

- and personal property. The Additional Special Contribution tax rate will increase from three
percent (3.00%)to three point seventy five percent (3.75%) for real property, and for personal

property the tax increase goes from three point five percent (3.50%) to four percent (4.00%).

The new tax rates will apply on January 1, 2013, and on July 1, 2013 the CRIM will begin its

_ 
billing and collection.
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON-GENERAL FUND
(SEE NOTES TO BUDGEIARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

BudadedAmounrs
Oliainal Firal

REVE UES:

Muni.ipal sles and useta
Licen*, oermits and other l@l tes

EXPENDITURES, ENCUMBRAIiICES AND OTIIEF

Cunure and .*Gation
Ope6iing lransler to ofier fund

$ 9.509,255
4,118.750
1,204,000
1,025,000
2,727,665

116,300

3o5,O0o
219.500

$ 10.513,891
4.118,750

1,025,000
2,727,665

115,300
45,100

30s,o0o
219.500

$ 9,a64,166
3,674,620
1,262,&57
1,222,132
2,170,692

33,592
474,476
534.209

19.332.913

$ (649,725)

54,457
197,732

(616,973)
27,929

(11504)
173,416
314.709

1942.293\19270574 24.275.246

Tolal exDendlt!rcs, encumbEGand olheriin.ncinE
19270570 20275206

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVIR (UIIDER)
EXPEI{DIIURES, ENCUM BRANCES AI{D OII] ER

FINAI{CING SOURCES {USE5)

12.438.177
7,446,524
5,sg3,OAa

629,246
a0_910

20147s85

$ G55-072I

Erplamtlon oi Dlffeen6:

Sou@ri loE or rsurc*:
,krualamouds (budgetary basis)"avalable tor approDratD." from the budgetary com paien scheaure
DiffeEn6.budget to USGAAP:

Bond Euence lor operationEl expe nd il u 16
Non budgered rEnster in
USGAAP adjusrnefi ro revenles

Tolal renu6 and other llnanclng $u@ d repoded on the slalsent ot r*nu6, expsditures, .nd ch.n€es in

U*s/oulftoc or r@ur6:
actualamounts (budgeGry basis)"tota I cha Ees to appropialions" t om tlre budgetary @mpaison schedure
Diffeenc6 budger10 USGAAP:

Nonbudgeted transier out
USGMP adjustmeits b expendnuB
PrioryearencumbGnces e@ded ascurenty€arexpendnurG lor USGMP basE

Total expenditur6 and orher financing us as eporled o the $alement oi eenu6, expendltur*, and cnangB ln

10.165143 10891,408
2.151,558 2,151,558
6,215,970 6,4 ,341
655.949 655949
40910

11,146,769)
305,034
901,253
2T,743

____-81227

$ {855072)

$19,322,913

59,450
744.661

93AA?l.@,4

$ 20,€7.945

262,t53
1,6'l€.034

----aLt-glB

$2?'515J54
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

1. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCEAND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Bud{etarY Control

The lvunicipality's annual budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting,
which is not in accordance with USGMP, and represents departmental appropriations
recommended by the Mayor and approved by the N4unicipal Legislature prior to the
beginning of the fiscal year. Amendments to the budget require the approval of the
Municipal Legislature. Transfers of appropriations within the budget, known as Mayor's
Resolutions, do not require the approval ofthe Municipal Legislature.

The Municipality prepares its annual budget including the operations of the general fund.
For budgetary purposes, encumbrance accounting is used. The encumbrances (i.e.,
purchase orders, contracts) are considered expenditures when incurred. For USGMP
reporting purposes, encumbrances outstanding at year€nd are reported as reservations
of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the
commitments will be honored during the subsequent year.

The unencumbered balance of any appropriation at the end of the fiscal year will lapse
at the end of such fiscal year. Other appropriations, mainly capital project
appropriations, are continuing accounts for which the Municipal Legislature has
authorized that an unspent balance from the prior year be carried forward and made
available for current spending.

The annual budget as presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule-General Fund is
the budget ordinance at June 30, 2012 representing the original budget. There were no
supplemental appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2012.
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Apenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Department of Education:

Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 Not Available $ 215,620

Total U.S. Department of Agricutture

US. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN

- DEVELOPMENT;

_ Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher
Program !4.47L

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Office ofthe Commissioner of
N4unicipalAffairs:

_ Community Development Block Grant -
State Program

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Family Department:

_ Emergency Shelter Grant Program 74.23t Not Available

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Municipality of San Juan:

Housing Opportunities for Persons with
AIDS (HOPWA) 74.247 Not Available

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Family Department:

Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-
Housing Program (Recovery Act funded) !4.257 NotAvailable

- Total U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development

Federal lrass-through
Federal Grantor/Pas+through CFDA Entity ldentirying

2L5,620

Direct Program:
Community Development Block Grant -
Section 108 Loan Guarantees 14.244 NotAvailable 287,8a6

t4.228 Not Available 792,646

1,831,763

t2,974

30,134

62,750

3,018,093
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Federal Grantoy'Pass-through

Passthrough
Federal Entity
CFDA ldentirying

Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures

U.s DEPARTM EI.IT OFJUSTICE:

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Office of Public Security Affairs:

Community Prevention Grant

Total U.S. Department of Justice L4,927

- U.S DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:

Direct Program:
Federal Transit- Formula Grants(Recovery
Act Funded) 2O.5O7

Total U.s. Department of Transportation

U"S DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

634,980

634,980

- Direct Program:
Energy Efficiency and Conservation Block
Grant Program (RecoveryAct Funded) 47.724 94324

Total U.S. Department of Ener6/

U.S DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERV|CES:

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Governor's Office (OGAVE) (Cluster of
Programs)

Special Programs for Aging - Title lll, Part
C - Nutrition Services

9432A

Nutrition Services lncentives Program 93.053 Not Available 22,7 t3

16.548 Not Available L4,927

93.045 Not Available 199,263
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Federal Grantor/Pass-through

Flass-th rough
Federal Entty
CFDA ldentirying' Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERvIcES: (@NTINUED)

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto

- Rico Administration for Children and
Families (ACUDEN):

Community Service Block Grant 93.569 NotAvailable 13,685

ARRA-Child Care and Development Block 93.575 Not Available 8,956
Grant

Head Start C/uste,i
Direct Program:

ARRA-Early Head Start

- Pass-through the Commonwealth of Pueto
Rico Administration for Children and
Families (ACUDEN):

Head Start Program

Total U's. Department of Health and Human
Services

US.DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND
SECURITY:
Pass.through the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Emergency Management Agency:

Hazard Mitigation Grant

Total U'S. Depaftment of Homeland Security

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL
AWARDS

93.709 Not Available 7,579,502

93.600 Not Available 2,666,477

4,490,596

97.039 1,860

1,860

$ 8,470,404

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

A. BASIS OF PRESENTATION:

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant
activity of the Autonomous Municipality of Dorado and is presented on the modified
accrual basis of accounting. The basis of accounting is the same used to prepare the fund
financial statements. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Prcfit
Otganizations.

b.RELATIONSHIP TO FEDEML FII\IANCIAL REPORTS:

Amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule are included in the Special Revenue
Fund-Head Start, Capital Project Fund Federal grants and Other Governmental Funds in
the Municipality's fund financial statements. The reconciliation between the expenditures
in the fund financial statements and the expenditures in the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards is as follows:

Desc ption Special

Head Start

Capital

Grants

Other Total

Funcls

Per Schedule of
b(penditures of Federal

Non - federal programs
Expenditures

Total expenditures in the
basicfinancial

4,467,599

230,402

227,339 $ 3,781,466 $ a,470,404

18,000 233,656 4a2,Osa

4,692,OO1 245.339 $ 4,Oa5,a22 $ a,952,462
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REPORTON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FIMNOAL REPORIING AND ON @MPLIAI{CE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF NNANCIAL SIATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACOORDANCE Wlr}I GOVERNMENT AUDMNG STANDARDS

lo the Honoloble Mayor
and the Munlclpal Leglslature
Autooomous Munlclpallty ot Dorado
Dorado, Pueno Rko

We have audited the financial statements of lhe governmental activities, the busines$type
activttles, each major fund, and the aggegate remaining fund information of the Autonomous
Munlclpality ol Doiado, Pu8rto Rico, as of and for the year ended lune 30' 2012, which

collectively comgise the Munlclpalltys basic financial statements and have issued our report
tiereon dated February 12,2013, We conducted orr audit in a@ordanc! v{ith auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standatdt issued by the Comptroller
Generalof the llnited St6tes.

lntemal Control Over Financial Reooltinq
Manageflent of the Autonomous Municipallty o, Oorado is responsible for establishing and

marntaining effective intemal contol over flnancial reporting. ln plannlng and petforming our

audit, we cgnsidered the Autonomous Munlclpallty ot Dorado,s internal control over financial

reportjng as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the pu0ose of expressing our

opinionaon the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiven€ss of the Aulonomous Munlclpallty of Oorado's intemal coni.ol over financial

reponing Accordingy, Yi/e do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Autonornous
Munlclpallty ol Dorado's internal conlrol over financia I reporting

A deficiency in intenal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or emptoyees, in the normal Goulse of performing their assigned furctions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A matetial weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deticiencies, in internal controlsuch that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be

prevented, or detecied and corrected on a timely b6is.

Our consideratioD of internal control over fnancial reporting was for the limited purpose

described in the first paragraph of this seclion and was not designed to identify all
deficienc'res in intemal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, signilicant
deficiencies, or material weakness. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal clntrol over

financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as described above. However'

rve ldentifled certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reportin& described in the
acqrmpanying schedule of findings and qtlestioned costs that we mnsider to be signifi.ant
deficiencies in internal control over flnancial reporting Significant deficiencies are described

in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned cosb as item 12{1.
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REPORT ON INIERNAL CONTROL OVER FIMNCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIAI{CEAND
OTI{ER MATIERS BASED ON AI{ AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED II{

A(}oORDANCE WTru COVENNMENr AUDMNG S'AI"DAP,,S (CINTINUED)

A si9mcant deficiency is a dellciency, or a combination of deficiencies, ln internal control that
is less seyere than a material rveakness, yet importart enough to merit attention by those
charged with governance.

Comoliance ard Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance aboul whether the Autonomous Municipatlty ot
Dorado's linancial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contjacts and grant agreemeDts,
noncompliance v/ith which could have a direct and material eftect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on coflpliance with those
provlslons was not an objectve of our audll and accldlngy, we do nol express such an
opinion. The resulls of our tests d6cio6ed no instances of noncomdiance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Goyet nlFJnt Auditingstandards

We noted certain other matteG that we reported to management of the Autonomous
Municipality ot Dorado in a separate letter dated February 72,2073,

The Autonomous lrunicipallty ot Dorado's response to the Rndings identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying s€fiedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audil
Autonomous Munlclpality ot Dorado's response and, accodindy, we €reress no opinion on it.

This repon is intended soleiy for the informatjon and use of management and federal
awarding agencies and pasgthrough entities However, this report is a matier of public record
and its distribution is not limited.

--LfrlzV..A.kLOPEZ-VEGA" CPA, PSC

San.luan, Puerto Rlco
February 12, 2013

Stamp No. 2632095 ofthe Puerto Rico
Society of Certified Public Accountants
was affixed to Oe record copy of this repon.

\ /
C,r

Lipez-I ega,Cl'A, PSC

.Lrn- , ill.,rr!rr[trt A(t!isLr.
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INDEPENDEiII AUD]TOR'S REPORT OI{ COMPLIANCE WIIH REQUIREMENTS I}IAT COULD

HAVE A DIRECT AND MAIERIAL EFFE T ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAIII AND ON INIERNAL
CON'ROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACTORDANCE wlTl{ OMB CIRCULAR Afi'3

To the Honoroble Moyor
and tie Mutriclpal Leglslature
Autonomous Municipality oI Dorado
Dorado, Puerto Rlco

Comollance
We have audited the Autonomol6 Munlclpallty o, Dqrado's compllance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circulat A-733 Conpliance Supp,ement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of tie Autonomoug Munlclpallty ot Dorado'E
ma.lor tederal programs for t}le year ended June 30, 2012. me Autonomous Munlclpaltry ot
Dorado's major federal programs are identified in the summary of audito/s results section of
the accompanying schedule of ,indings and questioned costs' Compliance witi the
requirements of latts, rcgulations, contracE, and grants applicable to each o, its major federal
programs is the responsibility of the Autonomoue Municipality ot DoEdo'e managemenL Our

respoGibility is to express an orinion on the Autonomous Munlcipality ot Do.adot
compliance based on our audit.

\,Ye mnducted our audil of @mpliance in accordance with auditing standarG generally

aocepted in the Ljnited Ststes of America; the standards applicable to ,inandal audits
contained in Govemment Auditirtg Standads, issued by the Comptoller General of the United

States; and OMB Circular 4133, Audib of States, Loca, Go'4-mments, and Non+rofit
Orgrn,}atr'ons. Those standards and oMB clrcular A_133 require that Yve plan and perfotm th€
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about lvhether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements refened to above lhat could have a dir€ct and material effed on a
rnajor federal proEfam occurred. An audit includes examinin& on a test bass, evidence about
the Autonomous Municlpallty ol Dorado's complbnce with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the ci,cumstances. We

belleve that our audlt provldes a reasonable basls tor our oplnlon. our audlt does not provlde

a legal determination ot the Autonomou6 Municipality of Dorado'5 compliance with those
requirements.

ln our opinion, the Altonomous Municlpallty o, Dorado complied, in all material respeds, with

the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on

each of its major federal prolfams for the year ended June 30,2012. However, the results of
ou, auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance vvith those requirements,
which are required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-l:]3and which are
descdbod in the accompanlng sch€dul€ offindings and questioned costs as items 1202 and
1243.
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INDEPENDEMT AUDTTOR'S REPOFIf ON ClMPLIANCE wlTH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD
HAVE A DIRECT AiID MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL

cor{TRoL ovER coMPLtANCE tN ACCORDANCE WTH OMB CtRCUT.AR A-13i} (@r{nNUED)

lnternal Cont ol Over Comdiance
Management of the Autonomous Municlpalig of Dorado is responsible for establishing and
maintEining efrectjve intemal conbol over complionce \ ith the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. ln planning and performing
our audit, we considered the Autonomous Munlcipality ol DoEdo's internal control oyer
compliance \ ith the requirements that cou,d have a direct and material €ffect on a major
federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on corpliance and to test and repon on internal control over compliance in
accordance wlth OMB Clrcular A-133, but not for the purpose of expresslng an oplnlon on the
effectveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingy, we do not express an opinion
on tie eftectiveness of Autonomous Munlc-lpality ot Doiado's internal control over
complianc€.

A deticiency in intemal @ntrol over @mpliance exists when the design or operation of a
cootrol over comdiance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and coflect, noncompliance with a
lype of comdiance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis A materia, weakness
in internal @ntrcl ovet @mpliancF- s a deficiency, or combinatlon of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
non@mdiance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal progtam will not be
prevented, or detected and conected, on a timely basis.

Our consideratjon of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph ofthis section and was not designed to identiry all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might be deficiencjes, signiricant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However, we idertilied certain
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be signmcant deficjencies
as descdbed in the accompanying schedule of findinF ahd questioned costs as hems 1242
and L243- A significant deficiency in internal @ntrol ovet compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deflciencieq in internal control over compliance with a type of comdiance
requifement of a federal program that is less eovere than a matorial woakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged wlth
governance.

l,6ptz-l'ega,C l':1. PSC
IJ
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INDEPENDEiII AUOITOR'S REPORT ON COMPTIANCEWIIH REQUIREMENIS THAT COULD
HAVE A DIRECT AND MAIERIAL EFFESI ON EACH MAJOR PROGMM AND ON INIERNAL

ooNtRoL ovER coMpLTANCE rN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CTRCULAR A-13:l (@i{T|NUED)

TheAutonomous Mllnlclpallty ol Dorados rasponses to th€ findangs id€ntified in ouraudit are
described in the accompanylng schedule of findings and queslioned costs. We did not audit
Autonomous Munlclpallty of Dorado's responses and, accordingly, we expr€ss no opinion on
the responses.

We also noted other matters involving the intemal control over compliance and certain
immaterial instahce of noncompllance, which we have reported to management of the
Autonomous Municipality o, Dorado in a sepa.ate letter dated March 7, 2013.

This reporl. is intended solely tor Lhe information and use of management and federal
awarding agencies and pasgthrough entities. However, this repon is a matter of public record
and its distribution 6 not limited.

-/ftv-r"'&'kLOPEZ-VEGA, CPA, PSC

San Juan, Puefto Rico
March 7,2013

Stamp No,2632096 of the Pueno Rico
Soci€ty of Certifi€d Public Accountants
was aflixed to the record copy of this repon

I
L.jpe.-l'c ca, C P4 , PSC

(t
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Section I - Summary ofAuditor's Results

Financlal Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualmed

lnternal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness identified? Yes No X
Significant deficiencies identified not considered to
be material weaknesses? Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to flnancial statements Yes No X
noted?

Fedenl awatds

lnternal Control over major programs:
l\raterial weakness identified? Yes No X
Significant deficiencies identified not considered to
be material weaknesses? Yes X None reported

Type of auditoas report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Circular
A'133, Section .510(a)?

ldentification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster

Unqualified

Yes X No

10.558
14.471
20.507

93.600
93.709

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee?

Chrld and Adult Care Food Program
Section a HousingChoice Voucher Program
ARRA'Fedelal Tra nsit Folmula Grcnt
Head Stat Cluster:
Head Start Program
ARRA Early Head Start

$ 300,000

Yes No X
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOI,,S MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Section ll - Financial Statements Findings

FindinliReterence !24L

Requirement

Statement of Condition

Financial Reporting - Accounting Records

During our examination of the Municipality's accounting system, we
noted that the Municipality's accounting records for its Local, State and

Federal Funds does not provide modified basis financial statements.
Also, the accounting system does not offer subsidiaries to produce
government-wide financial statements. The computerized system

authorized by the Office of the Commissioner of Municipal Affairs (OCAM)

and manual systems maintained by the finance department personnel,

do not provide adequate and effective financial information to generate

the basic financial statements since the account balances were aflected
by accounting errors in the first years ofthe system operations.

Therefore, the Municipality hires the professional services of local

accounting firms to perform the required adjustment entries to convert
its accounting records from cash basis to modified and then to accrual

basis and compile the necessary information as required by GAAP and

State Act 81.

Article 8.010 of State Act Number Sl ofAugust 30, 1991states that the
Municipality should maintain an effective and updated accounting
system.

The lvlunicipality did not establish effective internal control over the
transactions recorded on its accounting records. Also, the accounting
data is not summarized in the form of a double€ntry general ledger

record.

The Municipality accounting system did not provide updated and

complete financial information that present the financial position and

the result of operations and the change in fund balances. Such

information is necessaryto take management decisions.

We recommend that the Municipality should establish internal control
procedures in order to maintain an accounting system that contains
information pertaining to authorizations, obligations, unobligated

balances. assets, liabilities, outlays or expenditures, interfund
transactions, etc.

Criteria

Cause oI Condition

Eltect ofcondition

Recommendation
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AT,TONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Section ll - Financial Statements FindinEs

- Finding Reference 12-01 (Continued)

Questioned costs None

ManaElement Response

And corective action The Commissioner of Municipal Affairs ("OCAM"), amended the Law so
that the Municipality, could select the accounting system, according to
the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, The Municipality is in the
final stages of selecting the accounting software and expects its
implementation in the beginning ofthe next fiscal year.

lmplementation date: July, 2073

Responsible Person: Mr. Luis R. Sierra Salgado- Finance Director
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Section lll - Mayor FederalAward Program Findings and Questioned Costs

' Findinll Reference L2-O2

Progam Head Start Cluster; Head Start (CFDA. No. 93.600); u.S. Department of
Health and Human Services; Pass through State - Commonwealth ot
Puerto Rico Admlnistration for Children and Families,
ARRA Early Head Start (CFDA. No.93.709); U.S. Department of Health
and Human Services.

Requtrement Cash Management

statement of condltion During our Cash lvanagement Test to Head Start Program, we found the
following exceptions:

a. we noted that the Program requested funds that were not disbursed
on a reasonable laPSe of time.

b. During two (2) months the bank reconciliations reflected an
overdraft.

ln our Cash Management Test of ARRA Early Head Start Program, we
found the following:

a. We noted that the Program requested funds that were not disbursed
on a reasonable lapse of time.

b. During three (3) months the bank reconciliations reflected an

overdraft.

- criteria Code of Federal Regulations 45, Subpart C, Section 92.20 (b) (7)'
requires a cash management system in order to minimize the time
elapsed between the transfer of funds from the U.S. Treasury and the
disbursements made by the grantee.

cause of condition There are no adequate internal controls to assure that funds requested
- to the federal agency are disbursed for immediate needs.

Effect of conditlon The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations 45,
Subpart C, Section 92.20 (b) (7).



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AI,TONOMOI,'S MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

section lll - Mayor Federal Award Program Findings and Questioned costs

Finding Reference

Recommendatlon

Questaoned Costs

Management ResPonse
And conective Action

tor Head Start Program

1242 (Continued)

We recommend management to follow cash management system
procedures developed by it in order to assure that funds requested are

disbursed as required by the regulation.

None

The Program follows "ACUDEN" procedures for the request and

disbursement of federal funds. But, also a fiscal agent for "ACUDEN"

made the commitment with the program to verify and establish a

effective process for the request and disbursement of federal funds and

eliminate this finding. ln addition, the l\4unicipality established a new

bank account to contribute at least 20 percent of the cost of the
program, so the program can maintain low bank balances.

lmplementation Date: APril, 2013

Responsible Person: Sarahi [/et6ndez - Program Director

Teresa Acevedo - Program Accountant

Management ResPonse
and correctite actlon
lor ARRA Early Head Start
,r"g;. The Program follows procedures for the request and disbursement of

federal funds. On October 2011, the new accountant for the program

began to work on this finding, minimizing the time elapsed between the

request of funds and the disbursement' The Program expects to clear

this finding bY next audit Period.

lmPlementation Datei )uly, 2Ot2

Responsible Person: Sarahi Mel6ndez - Program Director

Daniel Reyes - Program Accountant
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AI.JTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Section lll - Major FederalAward Program Findings and Questioned Costs

FindinEI Reference

Pro€lrdm

Requirement

statement of condition

L2-O3

Head Start Cluster: Head Start (CFDA. No.93.600); U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services; Pass through State - Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico Administration for Children and Families.

ReportingTest

ln our Reporting Test, to Head Start Program, we observed the following

exceptions:

a. The Monthly Financial Repofts for January 2Ol2 and Feb(uary 2O\2,

and the Funds Liquidation and Trial Balance for the Program Year

ended on February 28, 2012, were submitted to the Commonwealth

of Puerto Rico Administration for Children and Families after the due

date.

b. We found differences between the amounts reported as federal

expenditures in the monthly financial reports (January and February

2Ol2) and in the Closing Report for the Fiscal Year 2012 submitted

to the pass-through agency and the amounts detailed in the cash

register and the general ledger.

c. The expenditures detailed in the monthly financial reports are based

on estimates. As result, the financial reports are not in accordance

with the program accounting records. Differences are not adjusted in

the closing reports. ln addition, we noted that no adequate

procedureJexist to document the adjustments posted to the general

iedger accounts. Also, footing errors were identified in the February

20i2 Request of Funds and in the Funds Liquidation form'

Code of Federal Regulations 45, Subpart C, Section 92'20 (b) (1), states

that the grantee mJst maintain internal control procedures that permits

proper t;cing of funds to the accounting records Also, it requires

accurate, curr;nt and complete disclosure of financial results'

Criteria
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2012

Section lll - Major FederalAward Program Findings and Questioned Costs

FlndlngReference 12{3(Continued)

Cause of Condition

Effect of Condition

Recommendation

Adequate internal controls do not exist to assure the correctness of
closing reports submitted to the federal agencies.

The program is not in compliance with the Code of Federal Regulations
45, Subpart C, Section 92.20 (b) (1).

We recommend the Program to establish monitoring procedures to
assure the accuracy of accounting records and a correct completion of
the closing reports. The program fiscal area must establish adequate
communication channels with the Finance Department in order to obtain
documental evidence related to obligations issued, cash receipt and

disbursements in a daily manner, in order to be posted in the accounting
register maintained by the Program. The Program fiscal area most
assures that accounting records are updated at the end of each month
in order to prepare accurate reports to the federal agency. ln addition
the accountant must assure that the cash register and the general

ledger are duly reconciled and iournal entries posted in the general

ledger and duly documented and explained. We consider that the
Program Director must evaluate the implementation of a computer
accounting software to maintain the program books. Due to the large

volume oftransactions manual books are considered inefficient.

lllanagement Response
Ancl cofiectlve Action
for Head Stan
Program lnstructions were given to the program accountant to establish the

adequate control procedures to assure that cash register books and the
general ledger are updated in a timely basis to assure that monthly

reports submitted to the pass-through agency includes actual costs and

not estimates in order to avoid this situation in the future Also, more

effective controls will be established so that reports are delivered within

the dates set.

lmPlementation Date: APril, 2013

Responsible Person: Sarahi Mel6ndez - Program Director

Teresa Acevedo - Program Accountant
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINOINGS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Orignal CFDANo, Cunent Status of Pdor Year Ardit Federal Award Findings - Part lllFindings
Fjnding (As required byoMB Circular,+133)
Number

77-02 74.47 7 The Section 8 HousinA Choice Voucher ProAram did not complv with
the comDliance requirement of Depositorv Aqreements. The PHA is
reouired to enter into deoositarv agreement with their financial
institutions in the form required by HUD. (Form HUD-51999)

Full corrective action was taken.

11-03 14.257 Manaqement should follow the procedures eslablished in the
Housinq Prevention and Raoid Rehousinp ProEram Ooerational
lvlanual. includinp the use of the forms included on it. Also. to
establish control orocedures to maintain a waitinS list with all
information reouired bv the Federal Regulation. This control must
permit prooer tracing of oadicioants selected in the waitinE list in
order to assure the selection from the too of the waiting list.

Partial corrective action was taken. The Program established a
checklist of documents that should be included in the participant's
files.

77 04 14.257 Management should strenEthen it's disbursement orocedures to
minimize the tirne elaosed between the transfuLqf lfunlls fuom Lhc
Pass-throuEh Grantor and the disbursements malle lbytLhe lPlqgIano.

Partial corrective action was taken. The Program stated that the high
balance on its cash account was an amount due to the Municipality.
Once the amount is reimbursed, the Program will be in compliance.

11-05 74.257 The reouired reoofts should be oreoared including all the reouired
information and management should establish monitorinq
orocedures to assure the correctness of the reoorts.

Partial corrective action was taken. The Program, as per funding
requirements, expected to issue all closing reports before due date.

11-06 93.600,
93.708

&
93.709

Management should follow cash manaAement svstem orocedures
develooed bv it in order to assure that funds reouested are
disbursed as reouired bv the requlation.

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for
the current year. Finding Reference 12-02.
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COMIIIONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

O gnal CFDANo. Currentstatus of PriorYearAudit FederalAward Findings - Part lllFindings
Finding
Number

(As required by0MB Circular A-133)

17-O7 93.600,
93.708

&
93.709

Manaqement should follow the procedures for managing equiDment
whether it is acouired or untjl disposition accordinA to regulation
reouirements.

Full corrective action was taken.

11-08 93.600,
93.708

&
93.709

Grantees must contribute at least 20 percent of the cost of the
proqram and document their compliance with this reouirement.

Full corrective action was taken.

1109 93.600,
93.708

&
93.709

lvana{ement should modifv the accountlnp svstem chart of
accounts to create a seoarate account for administrative and
programmatic expenditures. Also, cost with dual benefits
(administrative and oroqrammatic) should be identified and
allocated aporooriatelv usin€ a cost-benefit oroDortion.

Full corrective action was taken.

77-tO 93.600,
93_708

&
93.709

Ihc Proffam siould establish monitorinA orocedures to assure the
accuracv of accountinp records and a correct eompletion of the
closing reoorts. The proAram fiscal area must establish adequate
communication channels with the Finance Deoanment in order to
obtain documental evidence related to oblisations issued, cash
receiDt and disbursements in a daily manner. in order to be Dosted
in the accountinE reEister maintained bv the ProEram. The Prosram
fiscal area most assures that accounting records are updated at the
end of each month in order to prepare accurate reoorts to the
fedelalagencv. ln additiot'r the accountant must assure that the
cash register and the general ledEer are duly reconciled and iournal
entries oosted in the Eeneral ledEer and duly documented and
explained. The Program Director must evaluate the imolementation
of a computer accounting software to maintain the orogram books
Due to the larqe volume of transactions manual books are
considered ineff icient.

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for
the current year. Finding Reference 12-03.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

Original CFDA No. Cu reni Status of Prior Year Audh Federal Award Findings - Part lllFindings
Finding (As required by OMB Circutar A-1:l3)
Number

10-03 74.471 The Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Prosram did not comDlv with
the compliance reauirement of Depository AEreements. The PHA is
required to enter into depositarv agreement with thejr financial
institutions in the form reouired bv HUD. (Form HUD-51999)

Full corrective action was taken.

10-o4 93.600 ManaEement should follow cash management svstem orocedures
develooed bV it in order to assure that funds requested are
disbursed as reouired bv the reEulation.

No corredive action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for
the current year. Finding Reference 12-02.

10-05 93.600 The reouired reports should be oreoared includinE all the required
information and submitled in a timely manner. lf the deadline is not
achievable, a request for an extension should be obtained from the
federal agencv. Also. we recommend that the Municipalitv establish
monitoring Drocedures to assure the accuracy of accounting records
and a correct comoletion of the closinq reports. The program
accountant must establish adeauate communication channels with
the Finance Department in order to obtain documental evidence
related to cash receiDt and disbursements in a daily manner. in
order to be oosted in the cash register maintained bV the OroAram
accountant. This control will assure that accountin{ records are
actualized at the end of each month in order to preoare accurate
monthlv reDorts to the oass-throuqh aEency. ln addition. the
accountant must assure that the cash register and the general

ledEer are duly reconciliated and iournal entries posted in the
Aeneral ledEer are duly documented and exolained. We consider
that the oroEram Director must evaluate the implementation of a
computer accounting software to maintain the program books due
to a volume of transactions manual books are considered
inefficient.

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for
the current year. Finding Reference 12-03.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012

odginal CFDA No. Cunent Status of Prior Ye6r Audit Federal Award Findings - part t Findings
Finding (As required byOMB CircularA-133)
Number

09 02 93.600 N4anagement should follow cash manaEement svstem orocedures
develooed bv it in order to assure that funds requested are
disbursed as reouired bv the resulation.

Audit finding is no longer valid since has pass more than two years
since the reports were submitted to the Single Audit Clearinghouse.
The Federal Agency who delegated the funds to the Municipality is
not giving follow up to the finding and has not issued a final decision
respect to the finding.

09-04 93.600 The reouired reoorts should be oreoared includinq all the reouired
information and submitted in a timely manner. lf the deadline is not
achievable. a reouest for an extension should be obtained from the
federal aEencv. Also. we recommend that the MuniciDality establish
monitorinA Drocedures to assure the accuracv of accountind records
and a correct completion of the closinE reports. The program
accountant must estaillish adequate communication channels with
the Finance Deoartment in order to obtain documental evidence
related to cash receiot and disbursements in a dailv manner. in
order to be Oosted in the cash register maintained by the Drogram
accountant. This control will assure that accounting records are
actualized at the end of each month in order to Drepare accurate
monthly reports to the pass-throueh agencv. ln addition. the
accountant must assure that the cash reqister and the Eeneral
ledger are dulv reeonciliated and iournal entries oosted in the
Eeneral ledper are dulv documented and exolained. We consider
that the program Director must evaluate the imolementation of a
computer accountinq software to maintain the proEram books due
to a yoLumc of transactions manual books are considered
inefficient.

Audit finding is no longer valid since has pass more than two years
since the repofts were submitted to the Single Audit Clearinghouse.
The Federal Agency who delegated the funds to the Municipality is
not giving follow up to the finding and has not issued a flnal decision
respect to the finding.
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